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(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2024. This announcement, containing
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information to accompany preliminary announcement of annual results.
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Director’s Statement

EEHE

DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of SunCorp Technologies Limited (the
“Company”), | present to you the audited consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
mainly engaged in (i) the processing and trading of
used computer-related components, clothes and beauty
products business; (ii) the money lending business; and
(iii) the securities brokerage, placing and underwriting
business.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's
revenue amounted to approximately HK$38.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 41.4% as
compared with the revenue of approximately HK$66.3
million in 2023.

Gross profit from operation for the year ended 31
December 2024 was approximately HK$11.2 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 26.0% as
compared with the gross profit of approximately HK$15.2
million in 2023. The Group’s net loss for the year was
approximately HK$45.5 million, which was mainly due to
the provision for expected credit loss (“ECL") on trade,
other and loan receivables of approximately HK$27.0
million recognised during 2024.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, interest income
earned from money lending business was approximately
HK$11.8 million.
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OUTLOOK AND PROSPECT

In view of the highly unpredictable business environment,
we are evaluating different business segments within the
Group and reposition our strategy and business operation
in more optimistic business segments.

The Group will continue to seek potential investment
and business opportunities for broadening its income
stream and further development of the existing business
segments.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to extend our sincere thanks to our
customers, suppliers and staff for their continued support
and contribution to the Group during the year ended 31
December 2024.

ZHU Yuqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB W ETH

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$38.9 million
which represented a decrease of approximately 41.4% as
compared to the corresponding figure for the year ended
31 December 2023.

The gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2024
was approximately HK$11.2 million as compared to
approximately HK$15.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2023.

We continue to be optimistic at our business segment
and will capture more market opportunities as and when
appropriate. The sales of computer-related components
and related products was still an important source of
income of the Group. In addition, the financial arm of
the Group comprising of securities brokerage, placing
and underwriting business and money lending business
also contributed to the revenue of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2024. The revenue and net loss
or profit for each business segment for the year ended
31 December 2024 are set out as below:
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Trading of used Provision of
computer- securities
related brokerage,
components, placing and
clothes and underwriting
beauty products services Money lending
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Revenue L& 26,921 124 11,831
Net loss BEEE (5,827) (3,334) (18,251)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Current ratio BNt X
Gearing ratio (defined as the total

borrowings divided by total equity)  #2fEERR A BEZ

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$29.9 million, net current
assets of approximately HK$199.2 million, total assets of
approximately HK$231.5 million and shareholders’ equity
of approximately HK$197.9 million.

The Group generally financed its operations through
internally-generated cash flows and Shareholders’ equity.

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the amount of
the total outstanding loan receivables is approximately
HK$91.7 million with 8-10% interest rate and all loan
receivables are recoverable within 1 year.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the amounts
for the largest borrower and the five largest borrowers in
aggregate are approximately HK$9.6 million and HK$37.8
million, respectively, accounted for approximately 10.5%
and 41.2% of the total loan receivables of the Company.

The Group normally reaches out the target customers
through the Group's reputation in the financial services
industry, the existing business network and the finance
magazine. The Group targets both retail and corporate
customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB W ETH

When determining loan tenure, the Group will normally
take into factors including, but not limited to personal
financial background and repayment ability of the
borrowers, internal credit checking results, the borrowers’
repayment record in other financial institutions and,
where applicable, value of the to-be-pledged collateral,
the availability of any guarantee. The Group will base
on the information gathered from the borrowers to
determine the loan tenure.

When determining the interest rate of the loan, the
Group will take reference to the past record of interest
rate used by the Group and market rate for the interest
rate.

In addition, the Group funds the money lending
transaction through our internal resources. As at 31
December 2024, the loan receivables of approximately
HK$91.7 million will mature on or before 31 December
2024 and loan receivables were neither secured by
collaterals or any guarantee and were not overdue as
at 31 December 2024. As at 31 December 2024, the
maturity profile of the loan receivables of approximately
HK$91.7 million were within twelve months from the end
of the reporting period. In the loan portfolio, there are a
total of 40 borrowers, of which 3 are corporate borrowers
and 37 are personal borrowers. The interest rate of the
loan receivables ranged from 8 to 10%. The Company
has complied with requirements set out in chapter 14
and/or 14A of the Listing Rules when it granted the
loans to each of the borrower(s), whose loan(s) was still
outstanding as at 31 December 2024. The Company has
not had an agreement, arrangement, understanding or
undertaking (whether formal or informal and whether
express or implied) with a connected person with respect
to the grant of loans to the borrower(s) whose loan(s)
was still outstanding as at 31 December 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For loan receivables, the ECL was primarily estimated
based on three key parameters, namely exposure at
default ("EAD"), probability of default ("PD"), and loss
given default ("LGD"). EAD is based on the gross carrying
amount of the receivables as of 31 December 2024.

LGD is calculated by one minus recovery rate, where
the recovery rate is estimated with available data in
the Moody’s research paper and the collateral-to-loan
ratio (if there is any collateral pledged to the loan, and
its fair value could be provided by the management of
the Company or could be estimated based on quoted
price in an active market). For loan receivables that the
management of the Company considered could not be
recovered, no recovery was applied.

The key assumption and basis used in determining the
ECL, market data (e.g. PD, LGD, Moody's forecast) are in
line with the credit risk of the subject in the future.

The adopted valuation method is a common and widely
used approach to estimate the expected credit loss for
receivables. While the expected credit losses should
be measured as probability weighted or expected loss
amount, the method adopted considered both the
expected probability of occurrence of loss event and the
expected loss severity in the event of default based on
historical data and market expectation.

The significant changes in the value of the input would
be certain loan receivables which were stage 2 for the
year ended 31 December 2023 have been transferred
to stage 3 for the year ended 31 December 2024 which
constituted the impairment loss on loan receivables of
approximately HK$34.8 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB R ST T

Risk management policies

The Group has developed a credit policy and procedures
manual for its money lending business. The credit policy
and procedures manual specifies, among others, the
loan application, credit approval and monitoring ongoing
credit risk procedures. Prior to grant of a loan to a
borrower, the Group carries out credit risk assessment
on the borrower, taking into account, among other
things, the background and character of the borrowers,
shareholders’ background, character, and management
capability (if any), purpose of the loan, value of collateral
and guarantee (if any), where applicable, relevant public
searches and the financial strength of the borrower,
shareholder and guarantor.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Authorised share capital

As at 31 December 2024, the authorised share capital
of the Company was HK$600,000,000 divided into
100,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.006 each. The
authorised share capital had no change during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

Issued share capital

As at 31 December 2024, the issued share capital of the
Company was HK$9,231,219 divided into 1,538,536,566
shares of HK$0.006 each. There was no movement for
the number of shares in issue of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EXCHANGE RATE

Most of sales in the current year were denominated in
United States dollars, whilst the majority of the Group’s
expenses were denominated in United States dollars,
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Although the Group
currently does not maintain any hedging policy to
hedge against foreign exchange exposure that may arise
from the above transactions, the management team
continuously assesses the foreign currency exposure,
with an aim to minimize the impact of foreign exchange
fluctuation on the Group’s business operations.

RAISING OF FUNDS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

On 23 April 2021, the Company entered into a placing
agreement pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to place through the placing agent, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, on a best
effort basis, up to 580,000,000 placing shares at the
placing price of HK$0.10 per placing share to not less
than six placees who and whose beneficial owners were
independent third parties (the “Placing”). The placing
shares were allotted and issued pursuant to the specific
mandate granted by the shareholders of the Company on
16 July 2021.

The Placing was completed on 2 August 2021. The net
proceeds (after deducting the placing commission and
other related expenses) from the Placing amounted to
approximately HK$56.2 million. The net proceeds were
intended to be used for the further development and
operations of the virtual asset trading platform of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB W ETH

As at 31 December 2024, the net proceeds had been R-ZE-_WMF+HA=+—8B F
utilised as follows: SRBEFECREATRHE

Utilised
Unutilised Revised amount for Unutilised
amount as at unutilised the year ended amountasat  Expected timeline for the
Revised 31 December amount of 31 December 31 December  application of the unutilised
Use of net proceeds allocation 2023 proceeds 2024 2024 proceeds
RZB=Zf fEgsEe  REE-Z-@F g ]2
TZAZ1t-B%8 &8 TZAZt-B tZRZt-BA® HABAKEREZ
FERERERR FHP) k3] ABALE LEECBHALHE BeE READARMER
HK$ million HKS million HK$ million HKS million
BEET BEET BEET BEET
Web application development of the virtual asset 126 54 - - - By 31 December 2024
trading platform
EREERSHTANBRERRE RZZ-m%F
TZRA=+—-BZH
Acquisition of equipment and the related 7.2 38 . - — By 31 December 2024
installation and technical support services fees
BERBEREBRERRNXBRBE RZZ-ME+=A
=t—HZH
Cloud infrastructure and professional network 8.1 - - - -

management services fee

EARREREXBUEARYE =

Staff costs and consultancy fees for operational 8.4 2 2 2 — By 31 December 2024
and technical staff and external consultants
BIERBIMABURIMNIBRNE IRAR R-ZE-mF
BHE TZA=t-HZH
Digital and data securities services fee 12 12 - - — By 31 December 2024
UTRABEFRBE RZZ-m%
TZA=T—-HZE
Working capital in operating the virtual asset 0.4 79 - - ~ By 31 December 2024

trading platform, including but not limited to
purchasing digital assets inventories and
purchasing insurance

BEERAERSTaNEEES A WZZZWF
BABRRBESFTEERERBERR TZA=T—-HZE
General working capital 183 - 183 18.3 - By 31 December 2024
—HEELES RZZ-m%
TZA=t-HZH
Total 56.2 203 203 203 -

5t
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Management Discussion and Analysis

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE PLACING AND
CHANGE IN USE OF PROCEEDS

References are made to (i) the announcements of the
Company dated 23 April 2021, 21 May 2021 and 2
August 2021 (collectively, the “Announcements”),
(ii) the circular of the Company dated 29 June 2021 in
relation to the placing (the “Placing”) of an aggregate
of 580,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company and the
use of the net proceeds and (iii) the disclosure on the
utilisation of the net proceeds in the 2021 annual report,
2022 interim report, 2022 annual report, 2023 interim
report, 2023 annual report and 2024 interim report of
the Company. Unless otherwise defined, capitalised terms
used herein shall have the same respective meanings as
those defined in the Announcements.

As disclosed in the Announcements, the net proceeds
raised from the Placing were approximately HK$56.2
million (the “"Net Proceeds”) and the Company intends
to apply the Net Proceeds from the Placing as follows: (i)
approximately HK$18.0 million for the web application
development of the virtual asset trading platform; (ii)
approximately HK$11.0 million for the acquisition of
equipment and the related installation and technical
support services fee; (iii) approximately HK$8.1 million
for the Cloud infrastructure and professional network
management services fee; (iv) approximately HK$8.4
million for the staff costs and consultancy fees for
operational and technical staff and external consultants;
(v) approximately HK$2.4 million for the digital and data
securities services fee; and (vi) approximately HK$8.3
million for the working capital in operating the virtual
asset trading platform, including but not limited to
purchasing digital assets inventories and purchasing
insurance. Approximately HK$18.3 million of the Net
Proceeds remained unutilized (the “Unutilised Net
Proceeds”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB R ST T

In order to better deploy the resources of the Group,
the Board has resolved to reallocate the Unutilised Net
Proceeds to the general working capital of the Group,
which is expected to be fully utilised by the Group by the
end of 2025. The timeline of using such proceeds will be
determined based on the Group’s actual business needs,
operational costs and expenses, and future business
development.

As at 31 December 2024, the net proceeds were fully
utilized which were used for general working capital as
follows:

— approximately HK$2.7 million for salaries expenses,
including directors emoluments and other staff costs;
and

— approximately HK$15.6 million for the Group’s
purchases.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2024, total market value for the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") of the Group was approximately HK$80.9
million (2023: approximately HK$78.3 million). The
Board considers that the investments with market value
accounting for more than 5% of the Group's total assets
as at 31 December 2024 as significant investments.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
recognised unrealised gain on financial assets at FVTPL
of approximately HK$0.5 million (2023: unrealised loss
of approximately HK$6.6 million). For the year ended 31
December 2024, the Group recognised realised losses on
financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$8.9 million
(2023: realised losses of approximately HK$0.2 million).
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Details of the financial assets at FVTPL,

Management Discussion and Analysis

in terms of 7R

BB BT
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market value as at 31 December 2024 are as follows: MEF BAFEFAEZZS/H
BEFEWT
Proportion Unrealised
to the total Proportion fair value
issued share to the total (loss)/gain
Stock No.of  capital for ~ Market assets of onthe Dividends Investment
Stock name code shares  the stocks value  the Group  investments  received strategy
ERE T84 REM
BETRA BEEr RERLTE
BUES: RARE  ROBBE  AHLA mfE h (FE) /hE BRERE  BEER
(HK$ 000) (HK$ 000)
(F#7) (F87)
WLS Holding Limited ERZRERAT 8021 302,640,000 2.11% 10,592 4.55% (605) - Passive B
SEEC Media Group Ltd HAEREEARAR 205 19,720,000 2.68% 3,885 1.67% (3,553) - Passive Hi&
China Investment and Finance Group Ltd ~~ REIRBESEAERAA 1226 18,727,760 454% 24,908 10.69% 14,319 - Passive JH1R
Milan Station Holdings Ltd ABUERERAR 1150 32,860,000 3.11% 6,112 2.62% (393) - Passive JHR
Wealth Glory Holdings Ltd BEERBRAR 8269 41,981,250 4.71% 3,359 1.44% (2,579) - Passive HiR
Asia Grocery Distribution Limited THEEERD T 8413 8,020,000 0.69% 1,003 0.43% 168 - Passive iR
China Environment Energy Investment Lt~ R EIRREREEBRA ) 986 59,224,000 4.57% 3,49 1.50% 1,480 - Passive Ak
AMCO United Holding Limited EFERERAT 630 38,808,000.0 401% 4,657 2.00% (970) - Passive J4if
Tai Kam Holdings Limited FRERERAT 8321 7,172,000.0 2.91% 2,438 1.05% (1,112) - Passive JHiR
Sub-total Nt 60,448 25.94% 6,755 - Passive B
Other 22 listed equity securities (Vote 2) EfnE FmkAES
(H#z) 20,523 8.81% (6,254)
Total B3t 80,971 34.75% 501
Note: B
1. Total assets as at 31 December 2024: HK$231,468,000. 1. RZE-_NF+-_A=+—HzZ4#&

2. As at 31 December 2024, other listed equity securities 2.

comprised 22 listed equity securities and none of them
was more than 3.0% of the total assets of the Group.
The companies of other listed equity securities are listed
in Hong Kong in which they are principally engaged
in steel business, the provision of financial services,
movie & entertainment business, electronic technology,
distribution, properties & construction and retail.

& 231,468,000 T ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB W ETH

WLS Holdings Limited is a company listed in Hong Kong
in which it and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the provision of scaffolding and fitting out services,
and other services for construction and buildings work,
money lending business, securities brokerage and margin
financing and securities investment business and assets
management business.

SEEC Media Group Limited is a company listed in Hong
Kong in which it and its subsidiaries are engaged in the
provision of advertising agency services, distribution of
books and magazines, securities brokerage business,
money lending business and e-commerce business in the
People’s Republic of China and in Hong Kong.

China Investment and Finance Group Limited is a
company listed in Hong Kong in which it and its
subsidiaries are engaged in securities trading and
investment holding.

Milan Station Holdings Limited is a company listed on
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in which it and its
subsidiaries principally engaged in retailing of handbags,
fashion accessories, embellishments and spa and wellness
products.

Wealth Glory Holdings Limited is a company listed
in Hong Kong in which it and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the trading of natural resources
and commodities; development and promotion of
brands, design, manufacture and sale of trendy fashion
merchandises and other consumer products; investment
in securities; and money lending business.

Asia Grocery Distribution Limited is a company listed in
Hong Kong in which it and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the food and beverage grocery distribution
business under the authentic and original “Hung Fat Ho"
brand in Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

China Environmental Energy Investment Limited is
a company listed in Hong Kong in which it and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design, original
equipment manufacturing, marketing of jewelry business
and money lending business.

AMCO United Holding Limited is a company listed in
Hong Kong in which it and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the business of manufacturing medical
devices.

Tai Kam Holdings Limited is a company listed in Hong
Kong in which it and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in construction business mainly site formation
works and renovation works in Hong Kong.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there were
no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 12 employees
(31 December 2023: 11), including the executive
Directors. The gender ratio of the Group’s workforce
(including senior management) was approximately 83%
male to approximately 17% female. The Group shall
continue to take into account diversity perspectives
including gender diversity in its hiring of employees from
time to time.

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the
performance of employees with reference to the market
condition. The Board may exercise its discretion to grant
share options to the executive Directors and employees as
an incentive to their contribution to the Group.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
Nil).
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Corporate Information
NEEH

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Yuqi
Mr. TONG Hei Ming Andrew

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAN Yuan
Mr. MA Kin Ling
Ms. HUANG Zhi

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. WONG Sin Fai, Cynthia

AUDITORS

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS

Hong Kong:
C&T Legal LLP

Bermuda:
Conyers Dill & Pearman

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
HSBC
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Unit 2305, 23/F., The Center
99 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Appleby Global Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited

Canon’'s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
PO Box HM 1179, Hamilton HM EX
Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.suncorptech.com.hk

STOCK CODE
1063

Corporate Information
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Details of Directors and Chief Executives

EERIETHASHE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Yuqi (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 33, is an executive
Director. Mr. Zhu is currently assistant to general manager
of a company located in Shenzhen, the People's Republic
of China (the "PRC").

Mr. TONG Hei Ming Andrew (“Mr. Tong”), aged 67,
is an executive Director. He graduated from The London
School of Economics and Political Science in 1979. Mr.
Tong was a former committee member of the Asset
Management Association of China and is currently
a member of the Hong Kong Securities Association.
Mr. Tong has extensive experience in securities, fund
operations and asset management. During the past 40
years, he was employed as key positions in multiple large
international banks and fund management companies,
including but not limited to, Hong Kong and Japan
branches of Citibank, Hong Kong and Australia branches
of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc., Japan branch of JP
Morgan, Standard Chartered Bank, BNP Paribas Asset
Management and UBP Asset Management Asia Ltd.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. MA Kin Ling (“Mr. Ma"), aged 42, is an
independent non-executive Director. He obtained a
Bachelor degree of Business Administration (Honours)
in Accountancy and Law from City University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Ma is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ma is currently an
independent non-executive director of Wenye Group
Holdings Limited (HK Stock Code: 1802) and an executive
director of World Super Holdings Limited (HK Stock Code:
8612). He was a chief financial officer and company
secretary of China Zenith Chemical Group Limited
(formerly known as Xinyang Maojian Group Limited) (HK
Stock Code: 362) and an independent non-executive
director of Wisdom Wealth Resources Investment Holding
Group Limited (formerly known as Hong Kong Finance
Investment Holding Group Limited) (HK Stock Code: 007)
and Elife Holdings Limited (HK Stock Code: 223).
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Details of Directors and Chief Executives

Mr. MAN Yuan (“Mr. Man”), aged 37, is an independent
non-executive Director. He obtained a Bachelor degree in
Marketing from the Inner Mongolia University of Science
& Technology. Mr. Man was the general manager in an
internet company located in Shenzhen, the PRC during
2013 to May 2015.

Ms. HUANG Zhi (“Ms. Huang”), aged 37, is an
independent non-executive Director. She graduated
from Changsha University majoring in communication
engineering. She has over 10 years of management and
business development experience in communication
and electronics industry. Prior to joining our Group, Ms.
Huang had held senior management position in sizable
company in the People’s Republic of China and she
was mainly responsible for strategic planning, business
development and operational management.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRE

The Board of the Company is pleased to present this
Corporate Government Report together with annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to high standards of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The
corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal control,
transparency, independence and accountability to all
Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
had applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Code”) in Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) during the period from 1 January 2024 to
31 December 2024; and unless otherwise stated, which in
the opinion of the Board, are not appropriate to follow.

The Company conducts periodic review on its corporate
governance practices to ensure that the Company can
meet the requirements of the CG Code on an on-going
basis. The key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company are summarized as below:

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

The Board is mandated with promoting the success of the
Company by providing leadership and supervising control
of the business of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

(continued)

As at the date of this report, the Company has the
following members on the Board:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Yuqi
Mr. TONG Hei Ming Andrew

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAN Yuan
Mr. MA Kin Ling
Ms. HUANG Zhi

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on
page 18 to 19 of this Annual Report. Under the Listing
Rules, every listed issuer is required to have at least three
independent non-executive directors, at least one of
whom must have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The number of independent non-executive Directors has
met the requirement of the Listing Rules and represented
one-third of the total Board members.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to the requirement of the Listing Rules. The Company is
of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines. Regular review will be made
on the Board composition to ensure the Company has a
balance of skills, expertise and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

(continued)
Board Independence Evaluation

The Company recognizes the importance of the Board
independence to corporate governance. In particular, in
order to ensure the strong independence of the Board
and make ensure that the Board can obtain independent
views and opinions, the following mechanisms are
required: 1) in assessing the qualification of potential
candidates to become independent Directors, the
Nomination Committee and the Board will consider,
among others, whether the candidates are able
to dedicate sufficient time to fulfill their duties as
independent Directors and the candidates’ backgrounds
and qualifications, in order to assess whether such
candidates are able to bring an independent view to the
Board; and 2) the Nomination Committee is authorized to
assess the independence of all independent non-executive
Directors on an annual basis with reference to the
independence criteria set out in the Listing Rules so as
to ensure that they can continue to exercise independent
judgment.

All Directors have full and timely access to all information
of the Company and to the advice and services of
the company secretary and senior management of
the Company. Directors are generally entitled to seek
independent professional advice on the discharge of their
duties to the Company in appropriate circumstances upon
request and at our Company’s expense.

At the same time, the Company has formulated internal
policies (including but not limited to the Articles, the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee,
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee)
to ensure that the Board is provided with independent
views and opinions. For the year ended 31 December
2024, the Company has reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the above mechanism and is of the
view that the above mechanism is able to ensure that the
Board is provided with independent views and opinions.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

(continued)
Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to Code Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

Up to the date of this report, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development by
attending training course or reading relevant materials
on the topics related to corporate governance and
regulations.

Newly appointed Director will be arranged a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction which
includes provision of key guidelines, documents and
publications relevant to their roles, responsibilities
and ongoing obligations; a briefing on the Company's
structure, businesses, risk management and other
governance practices and meeting with other fellow
Directors so as to help the newly appointed Directors
familiarize with the management, business and
governance policies and practices of the Company, and
ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
operations and businesses of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company follows a formal and transparent procedure
for the appointment of new Directors to the Board. The
Board will consider on a regular basis whether necessary
changes are needed in respect of the structure, size
and composition of the Board and to identify suitably
qualified candidates if there is such a need. In accordance
with the existing Bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws”), every newly appointed Director shall hold office
till the next following general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

According to the Bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation at least once every three
years. For the avoidance of doubt, all Directors, including
the Chairman of the Board, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation.

NUMBERS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2024, 4 board
meetings were held. The attendance records of each
Director at the Board meetings and the annual general
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2024 was
as follows:

Name of Directors EEHA
Mr. ZHU Yugi KFEFLRE
Mr. TONG Hei Ming Andrew EEALE
Mr. MAN Yuan (Bl 7 &
Mr. MA Kin Ling SRz rE
Ms. HUANG Zhi ﬁvuJﬁH
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Corporate Governance Report

NUMBERS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE (continued)

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis and on
an adhoc basis. The Bye-laws allows Board meetings
to be conducted by means of telephones or other
communications equipment and any resolutions to be
passed by way of written resolutions circulated to and
signed by all Directors from time to time when necessary
unless such as are temporarily unable to act through ill-
health or disability.

At least 14 days’ notice for regular Board meetings and
reasonable notice for non-regular Board meetings are
given to all Directors so as to ensure that each of them
had an opportunity to attend the meetings. The company
secretary of the Company (the “"Company Secretary”)
assists the chairman of the Board in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda
and the accompanying Board papers are sent in full to
all Directors at least 3 days before the date of the Board
meeting.

After the meeting, draft minutes of the Board meeting
are circulated to all Directors for their comment before
execution and approval. All Board minutes are kept by
the Company Secretary and available for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice given by the
Directors. Every Director is entitled to have access to
Board papers and related materials and has access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Board opines that it is not necessary to appoint a
Chairman or Chief Executive and daily operation of the
Group is delegated to executive Directors, department
heads and various committees.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) for
overseeing particular aspect of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with
clearly defined written terms of reference which set out
the scope and authorities of the respective committee.
The terms of reference are available to Shareholders for
inspection on the Company’s website. Copies of minutes
of all meetings and resolutions of the committees, which
are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated to
all Board members and the committees are required
to report back to the Board on their decision and
recommendations where appropriate.

As at the date of this report, the members of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee are:

Audit Committee

Mr. MA Kin Ling (Chairman)
Mr. MAN Yuan
Ms. HUANG Zhi

Remuneration Committee

Mr. MAN Yuan (Chairman)
Mr. MA Kin Ling

Nomination Committee

Mr. MA Kin Ling (Chairman)
Mr. MAN Yuan
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides an important link between
the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming
within the scope of the audit of the Company. The Audit
Committee was established in March 2000 with written
terms of reference and is currently consists of three
members, of whom all are independent non-executive
Directors.

The Audit Committee is responsible for, among others,
reviewing the appointment of auditors on an annual
basis including a review of the audit scope and the
audit fees; ensuring the objectivity and independence
of the auditors, meeting with the auditors to discuss
issues arising from the final audit and any matters the
auditors suggest to discuss; reviewing the sufficiency and
effectiveness of the risk management and the internal
control; engaging a professional consultant as the
Group's internal auditor to discharge the duties of the
Group’s internal control and risk management; reviewing
the annual and interim report in accordance with the
accounting policies and practices and relevant accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements;
and serving as a focal point for communication between
other Directors and the auditors in respect of the duties
relating to financial reporting.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company's policy
when necessary.
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CEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, 2 Audit
Committee meetings were held and the attendance
record of each committee member at the meetings was
as follows:

EEZEE (M)
BEREES (&)
RBEE-ZE-_HNF+-_A=+—H
LFE- iéAﬁﬂTﬁmﬁﬁi

i/E\/E\_\i& K/\EWE\ZEH&

fERERIAT

Attendance/

Number of

meetings attended

HERHE

Name of Audit Committee members EVEEBRER R SERE
Mr. MA Kin Ling (Chairman) Bl@ELE (£E) 2/2
Mr. MAN Yuan (Bl 5 & 2/2
Ms. HUANG Zhi =R/ ME 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit
Committee performed the work, among others,
summarized below:

— Reviewing the financial reports and results
announcement for the following financial period
before submission to the Board for approval:

— for the year ended 31 December 2023

—  for six months ended 30 June 2024

— Reviewing the auditors’ independence and report
recommending to the Board for the re-appointment
of the external auditors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The financial reports and the results announcement of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 have
been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee,
which was of the opinion that the preparation of such
results complied with the applicable accounting standards
and requirements and that adequate disclosure have been
made.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established for the
purposes of, among others, ensuring there are formal
and transparent procedures for setting policies on
the remuneration for the Directors, determining, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management
and reviewing and/or approving matters relating to
share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
No Directors and executives can determine his/her
own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
was established in March 2000 with written terms of
reference and is currently consists of two members, of
whom both are independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. MAN Yuan (Chairman) and Mr. MA Kin Ling.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice when necessary.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, a
Remuneration Committee meeting was held and the
attendance record of each committee member at the
meetings was as follows:
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Attendance/

Number of

meetings attended

HERHE

Name of Remuneration Committee members HMZEESHEH B SRR
Mr. MAN Yuan i [Bl 5t 4 1/1
Mr. MA Kin Ling BRELE 1/1

The Company has adopted a director remuneration policy,
it sets out the general principles which guide the Group
to deal with the remuneration matters. This remuneration
policy aims to provide a fair market level of remuneration
to retain and motivate high quality directors, senior
management of the Group and attract experienced
people of high calibre to oversee the business and
development of the Group.
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TERERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 1 April
2012 with the written terms of reference in compliance
with Code Provision B.3.1 of the CG Code. There are two
members in the Nomination Committee comprising two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. MA
Kin Ling (Chairman) and Mr. MAN Yuan. The principal
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to,
among others, make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, a Nomination
Committee meeting was held and the attendance record
of each committee member at the meeting was as

EEZEE (M)
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follows: fERRERIA T
Attendance/
Number of
meetings attended
HERHE
Name of Nomination Committee members REZEERENR EB2NRE
Mr. MAN Yuan Bl 55 A 11
Mr. MA Kin Ling BRRELE 1/1

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach
to achieve a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company and also to enhance the quality of performance
of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointment
will be considered against object criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives as stated in the above. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

Currently, the Board consists of five members who
have accounting expertise, management and business
development experience, or experience related to the
industry where the Company operates, one of whom is
female Director. The Nomination Committee has reviewed
the policy concerning the diversity of Board members
and believes that the Board has already had a diverse
mix of gender, skills, knowledge and experience. The
Company will strive to achieve gender balance of the
Board through the following measures to be implemented
by the Nomination Committee in accordance with the
Board Diversity Policy. The Company will actively identify
female individuals suitably qualified to become the Board
members. To further ensure gender diversity of the
Board in the long run, the Group will take opportunities
to increase the proportion of female members of the
Board, identify and select several female individuals with
a diverse range of skills, experience and knowledge in
different fields from time to time, and maintain a list of
such female individuals who possess qualities to become
the Board members, which will be reviewed by the
Nomination Committee periodically in order to develop a
pipeline of potential successors to the Board to promote
gender diversity of the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five
Directors. Three of the Directors are independent non-
executive Directors and independent of management,
thereby promoting critical review and control of the
management process. The Board is also characterized
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of
professional background, gender and skills.
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TERERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”). The nomination policy sets
out the selection criteria in assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate as Director. Such criteria
include but not limited to academic background,
qualifications, relevant experiences in the industry,
character and integrity of the proposed candidate.
Suitable candidate can be nominated by any Director for
the Nomination Committee’s consideration. Nomination
Committee should evaluate the personal profile of the
candidate based on the selection criteria as set out in
the nomination policy and undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of each proposed candidate. After
comprehensive assessment, the Nomination Committee
will then make appropriate recommendations to the
Board for approval. All appointments of Directors will
ultimately be based on merit while taking into account
the measurable objectives with regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination
Policy and the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis
and discuss any revision that may be required, and
recommends any proposed changes to the Board for
approval. During the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Nomination Committee has assessed and reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board, as well
as the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee considers that an
appropriate balance of diversity is maintained on the
current Board, which comprises members of both gender
and of different qualifications and experience. The
Nomination Committee has discussed and reviewed the
retirement and re-election of Directors and other relevant
issues.
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Corporate Governance Report

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in
preparing the financial statements of the Group. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2024, the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the applicable laws were
complied with. The Directors believe that they have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgment and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable and have ensured the financial
statements are prepared on the going concern basis.
The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditors, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 50
to 58.

Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Board maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system. The internal
control system is designed to provide reasonable
assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial and management
reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Directors have an acknowledgement that it is
responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness which cover
all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Board has engaged external
professional party to review the risk management
and internal control systems which were included the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control, to resolve material internal control defects, the
procedure and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information and the purchasing
and payment cycles and procedures of the business. The
Board will review this on an ongoing basis to ensure an
efficient system is in place.
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CEERRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

The Board is responsible for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. The Board must ensure
that the Company establishes and maintains effective
risk management and internal control systems to meet
the objectives and safe guard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Company.

The Board oversees the Group's overall risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. At
the same time, the Group endeavors to identify risks,
control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems which
are compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) -
Integrated Framework 2013 principles. They are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures in
order to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The management of the Company
had confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee
that the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems were adequate and effective.

The Group has established a risk management policy
which sets out the process of identification, evaluation
and management of the principal risks affecting the
business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and
assessing principal risks within its divisions on a
quarterly basis and establishing mitigation plans to
manage the risks identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing
the Group’s risk management and internal control
activities, attending quarterly meetings with each
division to ensure principal risks are properly
managed, and new or changing risks are identified
and documented.

3. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems.
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Corporate Governance Report

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

The risk management framework, coupled with our
internal controls, ensures the risk associated with our
different business units are effectively controlled in line
with the Group's risk appetite.

The Group does not have an internal audit department.
However, the Group has conducted an annual review
on whether it is necessary to set up an internal audit
department. Given the Group’s relatively simple
corporate and operation structure, as opposed to
diverting resources to establish a separate internal
audit department, the Board, as supported by the Audit
Committee, is directly responsible for risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness.

The Group engaged an external consultant, for internal
control and risk management to conduct review on
the internal control system and risk management
of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2024. The review covers certain procedures on the
sales of telephone and related products, and make
recommendations for improving and strengthening the
internal control system. No significant area of concern
that may affect the financial, operational, compliance,
control and risk management of the Group has been
identified.

The Group's risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board has the overall
responsibility to maintain the adequacies of resources,
staff qualifications and experience training programs
and budget of accounting and financial reporting
function and the Board concluded that the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems were in place
and effective.
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CEERRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of
insider information, the Group has adopted a policy on
disclosure of insider information with the aim to ensure
the insiders are abiding by the confidentiality requirement
and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
remuneration paid and payable to the Company’s external
auditors, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited were
set out belows:

Services rendered for the Group

=2 AR %5

Audit services

There was no non-audit service provided by McMillan
Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited to the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2024.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY AND ANTI-
CORRUPTION POLICY

The Company has established the whistleblowing policy
which allows all employees and independent third
parties, including customers, suppliers and contractors,
to report any possible improprieties, misconducts,
malpractices or irregularities in matters of financial
reporting, internal control or other matters to the Board
or the Audit Committee anonymously. The Group will
handle the reports and complaints with care and will
treat the whistle-blower's concerns fairly and properly.
The Audit Committee has the overall responsibility for
the whistleblowing policy but has delegated day-to-
day responsibility for overseeing and implementing it to
a designated officer. Any person who is found to have
victimized or retaliated against those who have raised
concerns under this policy will subject to disciplinary
sanctions.

The Group has adopted anti-corruption policy on a zero-
tolerance basis for any form of corruption, including
bribery and extortion, fraud and money laundering, and
promise to operate our business in an honest, ethical
and creditable manner. The policies are revised in due
course and all Directors and employees are reminded
with its requirement from time to time. In particular, the
Group has established a code of conduct and stipulated
in the compliance manual of the Company. Additionally,
the Group has implemented an effective internal manual
on inside information or price sensitive information and
has provided separate channels for the reporting of any
suspected business irregularities, fraud and corruption.

Please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report for more details.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG Sin Fai Cynthia (“Ms. Wong") is the
Company Secretary. She is responsible to the Board for
ensuring the board procedures are followed and that the
Board is briefed on legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments. She reports to the Board
directly.

Up to the date of this report, Ms. Wong has undertaken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
She has been contacting with the Board directly in
respect of company secretarial matters.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code"”) set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transaction. Based on specific enquiry of all the Directors,
the Directors have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2024.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with Shareholders and, in particular, use annual general
meetings or other general meetings to communicate with
Shareholders and encourage their participation in such
meetings.

At least twenty (21) clear days’ notice for annual general
meeting and at least ten (14) clear days’ notice for all
other general meetings are given to Shareholders before
the meeting.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

Details of poll voting procedures will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings and any questions from
Shareholders regarding the voting by way of poll will be
answered. Poll results will be posted on the website of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at the date of
the conclusion of the general meeting.

To promote communication, the Company maintains
website at www.suncorptech.com.hk where extensive
information and updates on the Company's business
developments and operations, financial information and
other information are posted. The Company has reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholder’s
communication policy during the year ended 31
December 2024 and concluded that it is effective.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a policy on payment of
dividends in January 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”).
The Dividend Policy aims at enhancing transparency of
the Company and facilitating the members and investors
to make informed investment decisions relating to the
Company.

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Board may take into
account of, among other matters, the following factors
when considering the declaration of interim dividend and
proposing the payment of final dividend for the approval
of Shareholders:

(i) the Group's actual and expected financial
performance;

(i) the Group's expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and futures
expansion plans;

(iii) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Group;
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)
(iv) the Group's liquidity position;

(v) general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Group;

(vi) statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

(vii) any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing Shareholders
and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from
investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to
the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, there is no
significant change in the Company’s memorandum of
association.

There was no change to the Bye-laws during the year
ended 31 December 2024. The Bye-laws are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeqguard shareholder’s
interest and rights, separate resolutions are proposed
at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for
shareholders’ consideration and voting. All resolutions put
forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results
will be posted on the SEHK website and the Company’s
website after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING AND
PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SPECIAL
GENERAL MEETING

Special general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of Shareholders holding not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company or
by such Shareholders who made the requisition (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) (as the case may be) pursuant to
Article 58 of the Bye-Laws. Such requisition must state
the object of business to be transacted at the meeting
and must be signed by the Requisitionists and deposited
at the registered office of the Company or the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong. Such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the Requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in such Bye-Laws for convening a
special general meeting. Shareholders may put forward
proposals at general meeting of the Company by sending
the same to the Company at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests in
respect of their rights to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

On behalf of the Board

ZHU Yuqi
Executive Director

26 March 2025
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The Directors of the Company present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and
is also engaged in treasury functions. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the processing and trading
of used computer-related components, sales of clothes
and beauty products business. During the year ended 31
December 2024, the Group also engaged in providing
money lending business; and securities brokerage and
underwriting business.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on pages 59
to 60 of this report. The Directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December
2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
had a decrease of approximately 41.4% in revenue
as compared to the corresponding figure for 2023.
Information relating to the financial performance and fair
review of the Group business is set out in the section of
“Director's Statement” and the section of “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

42 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #ifeRi 4R A ]

AR EEeENRERHEZ-Z
THFE+_A=+—HIEFEZF
WM EZIRE T IFERE -

FEEK
ARE ) —EREEKR QG K
EEBRE-EMBARTENE

RIEREE - FEKEMEAMG R
EREREREREB - REEZ
T _NFEFT+_A=+T—RBLFE"
AEBTRERHEBEES AR
DAL BHER-

¥ER

KREBHE_ZT_ME+ A
:+—E¢¢f2¥ﬁﬁ#$ﬁ¢

FOFEOBE A Ea kHEMEME
Wak -BEFTEZMEEZ T M@

FTZRA=1t—BIFERMKE-

)

REBEEZE-_ZE_NF+=-_A=+—H
EFE - AEBZRER_T ==
FHESTRLO41.4% - BEX
SEMBERRLREEEZEBIEATS
BRZER DERAFR[EFTTW
HEIRIEBEN WA & -



BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the
requirements under the Companies Ordinance, Cap.
622 of the laws of Hong Kong, the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap.
571 of the laws of Hong Kong for, among other things,
the disclosure of information and corporate governance,
and the Group has adopted the Model Code (the “Model
Code"”) for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.

A discussion on the Group's prospects is provided in
the Director’s Statement on pages 2 to 3 of this annual
report. Description of principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group is facing is provided in the corporate
governance report on pages 20 to 41 of this annual
report while the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group can be found in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, discussions
on the Group's compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group,
relationships with its key stakeholders and environmental
policies are contained in the corporate governance report
and environmental, social and governance report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past financial years is set out on page 176
of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
five largest customers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 51.5% of the revenue of the Group
and the largest customer accounted for approximately
19.7% of the revenue of the Group while the five largest
suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately
62.6% of the purchases of the Group and the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 22.6% of the
purchases of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

(continued)

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2024 did
a Director, an associate of a Director (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules) or a shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an interest
in any of the Group’s largest customer or the largest
supplier.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

There was no addition on property, plant and equipment
during the year ended 31 December 2024. Details of
movements during the year ended 31 December 2024 in
the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set
out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year ended 31
December 2024 in the share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2024
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Yuqi
Mr. TONG Hei Ming Andrew

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAN Yuan
Mr. MA Kin Ling
Ms. HUANG Zhi
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Clauses 86(2), 87(1) and 87(2) of the
Company’'s Bye-laws, Mr. ZHU Yuqi and Ms. HUANG Zhi
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The term of office for each of the Director is the period
from the date of last re-election or last appointment
up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company's Bye laws.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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SHARE OPTIONS

On 4 May 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) at annual general
meeting, under which the Directors may, at their discretion,
grant share options to eligible persons including Directors,
employees and consultants to subscribe for share of the
Company.

On 23 December 2021, a new share option scheme
(the "2021 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted and
the 2012 Share Option Scheme was terminated by the
Shareholders at special general meeting.

As at 31 December 2024, there were no options
outstanding under the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2024, the total number of securities
available for issue under the 2021 Share Option Scheme
was 149,293,656 shares, representing 9.7% the total
number of issued shares of the Company

(i) the number of options available for grant under
the scheme mandate of the 2021 Share Option
Scheme as at 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024
were 149,293,656 Shares and 149,293,656 Shares
respectively;

(i) the number of shares that may be issued in respect
of options and awards granted under the 2021 Share
Option Scheme of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2024 divided by the weighted
average number of Shares in issue for the year ended
31 December 2024 was approximately nil.

Since the date of adoption of the 2021 Share Option
Scheme and up to 31 December 2024, no share option
was granted, exercised, outstanding, cancelled or lapsed
under the 2021 Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2024 was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the Directors were not aware
of any persons or entities (other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company) who/which had or
were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares, which were required
to be recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
under section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Worldwide Technology Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, provided the cash advance
to its director for facilitating the purchase of goods from
suppliers. The director was regarded as a connected
person of the Company. As at 31 December 2024,
Worldwide Technology Limited had an amount due from
its director up to approximately HK$3.0 million.

Details of the connected transaction was set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 5 November 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year ended 31 December 2024.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has no reserve available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 December 2024. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, a Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus, if: (a) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (b) the realisable value of the Company's assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium accounts.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
is set up by the Remuneration Committee on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The emoluments of the Directors are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted the 2021 Share Option
Scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible
employees of the Company, details of which are set out
in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2024, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR

There were no significant events of the Group after the
year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited have indicated
their willingness to accept re-appointment as the auditors
of the Company. A resolution for the re-appointment
of McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited as the
auditors of the Company for the ensuing year will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
ZHU Yugqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB MR EH

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of SunCorp Technologies Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
59 to 175, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “"Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

50 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED ##efiAR AR

k&

BHBENRARIARRK

(REREFMEALAERL )

=R

AAZEED (A TR TRM) BEa
TIF N ESIB EFE1758 T ER
FERAR([EARA])REHEA
Rl(ABAIEEE| ) NEAETK
BER UWEEAVMBERRBENR_Z
“ME+-_A=+—BHNHREUB
MAKR BEZBLFENGEAE
shEMEERER GAERE
BRMEGEAEBEESRER UAKEE
MHBRRZHT BEERGFTR
KER -

BMRS ZEHEEYBHRRER
BEAEFMAS ([EBEEL
BERMNEEM B RS ER G
HAEEMP R EX£ER
T NE+_A=+—HHEA
MBERARBEZREFENES
MHERREEEREAE TER
REBRAGINKEREZL SH
&g o

RRER

BMERBEBESHAMAERMHD
FrENFER([EBEEY])E
TEZ -BMEZFER T AERN
BECEARNBRERHMUFT A5 E
75 R A AE A B (T RR D AR —
TR - REFESAMAENE
KEGAEETA (AT
D) - #fBIRN E5E YEE
TTAPMEMERE T RME
E BRMEESHNEFREELRR
FEaEMARMNEZERLREER

Eggo



Independent Auditqr’s Report
8 3L 1% S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS HRETEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our HAREFEEABERMOEEH
professional judgement, were of most significance in W BRMRBEAHEETBRE
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of WENRAEENEH - ELEFIH
the current period. These matters were addressed in EEBRMEBABREBEREMBTREK

the context of our audit of the consolidated financial TEERNETEEN -BMTE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion HettEzHREHRERAER -F5H

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on AIHBARESEEA:
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL") of trade 1. BUESEFEREEEER(IA

receivables. HEEEE| ) BiE-
2. Allowance for ECL of loan receivables. 2. BWERZEREEBERE-
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEETEE BN ETNMEEREETSE

Allowance for ECL of trade receivables

BUE G R BRI EEERERE

Refer to notes 6(c) and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
B2HEEE M IERRMFE6(C) F23 -

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had trade Our procedures in relation to management'’s
receivables of approximately HK$11,230,000, allowance for ECL assessment of the trade
net of allowance for ECL of approximately receivables included:

HK$4,562,000. HMEREREEHREE ZRAAHEEEHERE
RZTE_NF+_A=+—H EBEEEHA HBIGIEFEE:

FEWE 5 BR 3K £911,230,000/8 7T MR T8 HA (5 - , ,
& 518 5 15 494,562, 0003 T o e  Obtaining an understqumg of and evaluating

the Group’s credit policies;

o TEEHLE BERENEERXR:

e Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing
profile of the trade receivables to the
underlying financial records and post
year-end settlements to bank receipts;

s HMEREBEMMBEILHFANNERE SRR
BRiRBEARFAEBRNBITERERE:
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Key audit matter

BARETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBFTNNEERARESSE

Allowance for ECL of trade receivables (continued)

BUKEZRAFBREEBRZE (&)

Management performed periodic assessment
on the recoverability of the trade receivables
and the sufficiency of provision for allowance
for ECL based on information including credit
profile of different customers, ageing of the
trade receivables, historical settlement records,
subsequent settlement status, expected timing
and amount of realisation of outstanding
balances, and on-going trading relationships
with the relevant customers. Management also
considered forward-looking information that
may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the
allowance for ECL.
ERERBIRAZFONGEEMRN BRE SR
T ERE  BEAEERS BEEEIRR TEH
FRAIAERERERCBREBBE SO
BRHMWEZFENERWE SRR AT E M
MEtiRTEHIEEBREEEN T B L ETTE ST
H-BERENERBARTERFERERERS
EREENHATRE M B R A TEHREE BB &
e

We focus on this area due to the allowance for
ECL of trade receivables under the ECL model
involved the use of significant management
judgements and estimates.
BMAILSERDAENEREEEREXTH
BRESEREHEEEEREIRFERAEX
BT E A R Ah AT e
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Inquiring of management for the status of
each of the material trade receivables past due
as at year end and corroborating explanations
from management with supporting evidence,
such as understanding on-going business
relationship with the customers based
on trade records, checking historical and
subsequent settlement records of and other
correspondence with the customers;
RBEARFERACBHEKE SRR
RREGHXFHEEZEETREENEE (7
WIRBE DR T MERTPSEEBRE
REZFPHNBAETRGEEELEUARERTP
HEMERER) BAEERE

Assessing the appropriateness of the ECL
provisioning methodology, examining the key
data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical
and forward-looking information, used to
determine the ECL; and

HETEREEEEREERS AE MR
SRERBIEE AN GEERE MTEBIE
VTERAETRAGEERMAZRR B
BERBIELEER R

We also assessed the disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements in relation
to the Group's credit risk exposure.
EZNTEN ESEEERRBRRGS MR
RPPTIEREE
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Key audit matter

BARETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBTNNEERRETSE

Allowance for ECL of loan receivables

BUREF R EEERER

Refer to notes 6(c) and 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
2HFRE M ERERM 7E6(c) X225 -

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s loan Our procedures in relation to management’s
receivables amounted to approximately assessment on provision for allowance for ECL of
HK$91,687,000, net of allowance for ECL of loan receivables included:

approximately HK$63,150,000. BMEREREEMIREKERNEREEESS

RZZE-_WNFE+—_A=+—H ' B£EHNE
W B 4 591,687,000 7T 1% TEHMDEFS
18 ¥ & 963,150,000 7T °

The allowance for ECL of loan receivables
represents the management’s best estimates at
the end of the reporting period of ECL under
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9:
Financial Instruments ECL models.

BREBETHENRERFEE:

Obtaining an understanding of and evaluating
the Group’s credit policies;

TEEE BEREMNEERR

Selecting samples to assess the reasonableness
of management judgement on whether
the credit risk has increased significantly

TIREKERBEHEEEEREEEEERE

EAVBMELENFER - 2R TABHEE impairment has occurred:;

EBEEX RBEHAREBEHEEBBEIRE o EEHN N UAEEEREEHEERRB VG

gt e RAREEBEEENMEEERAEERE
E’J#'J%)TEI’J{:\EE 3

since initial recognition and whether credit
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Key audit matter

BARETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBFTNNEERARESSE

Allowance for ECL of loan receivables (continued)

BUREHZEBREEERZE (&)

The measurement of ECL requires the
application of significant judgement and
increased complexity which include the
identification of exposures with a significant
deterioration in credit quality, and assumptions
used in the ECL models (for exposures
assessed individually or collectively), such as
the expected future cash flows and forward-
looking macroeconomic factors.

EHEEBENTERARAEARHABRARRE
EHERE EBEAMNEEEREER LY
Rk ARTEHEEBEEXPEANRE (3
BERS AR EORARTS) - HlNFERRKER
ERERAEMABLCEREZ-

We focus on this area due to the significant
amount of the loan receivables and the
significant estimates and judgement involved
in determining the ECL assessment on the loan
receivables.

BRI T EDERERERNERESRE
REFTERRERNEHEEBETEIREXR
ERPE -
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Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s
ECL models by examining the model
input used by management to form such
judgements, including testing the accuracy of
the default data from external international
credit rating agency, evaluating whether
the default data are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and
forward-looking information including
the economic variables and assumptions
used in each of the economic scenarios
and their probability weightings and
assessing whether there was an indication
of management bias when recognising loss
allowances, assessing appropriateness of the
categorisation of debtors, assessing relevance
of macroeconomic variables with the forward-
looking rate and how the change of these
variables affect ECL;
il EEEEHEEEREXSEMNS
ARBEEREREFEBABMRKAZE
i AR (BRI B BR S AT A i
BRENZOFENERYE) FER2ER
BRISERAKAELEN (BEGEKE
BRIPMERBNLCHEZLE MERRARHEBF R
BE)RKEZABRENERE M&%ﬁ*ﬁﬁ
RERAERBGERESHFERR FHER
ADEHBEE M %ﬁfﬁ%@ﬁéﬁmw
MAENEBUEARZEEENZ LA
ErEHEEBE:

Reviewing settlements after the financial year
end relating to the loan receivables as at
31 December 2024; and

R BEEREEHR_ZE_WME+_A
=t+-HERKREFXBBZEERBL: &

Assessing the disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements in relation
to the Group’s credit risk exposure

st EREEERRNEGEMB®ESP
FrVEH# 5% o



Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon
("other information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within
the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safequards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yeung Man Sun

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number — P07606
24/F., Siu On Centre, 188 Lockhart Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

26 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Revenue
Costs of sales

Gross profit

Other gains or losses, net

Distribution and selling expenses

Operating expenses

(Provision)/reversal of provision
for expected credit losses
("ECL") on trade, other and
loan receivables, net

Fair value (losses)/gains
on financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss (“"FVTPL")
— Unrealised
— Realised

(Loss)/profit from operation
Share of result of an associate
Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences reclassified

to profit or loss on
deregistration of a subsidiary

(Loss)/profit and total
comprehensive income
for the year

1R

mEEMEENER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

Note
Kz

Uy & 8
& AR

EF
Ho A U 58 o BT 1R R BR 9
2 M IHE R X
REFX
RS 5 HRK - Bt R UK
IR N R E R 2 A
EEEER ([RYFE
BiEl) (8w
R CIbE
BAFEF AR
(MERFEARRE])
ZEBMEBEZRNVFE
(B18) e
—RER
—D#BR

ge (EBR) gx
JERBE N R 2 ¥4
B 78 B AR 11

BRBLAT (B51E) RF
PR, (FX) 12

AEE (BR) 8RN 13

Hit 2 E W=
FJBERE L EF 7 IRE
B ZHEA -

L 3H — [ B B 2 ) B
ENSBREEAEN
PE 54 ZE R

rEE (BB BRIk
2HBEARE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
38,876 66,288
(27,638) (51,093)
11,238 15,195
3 29,760
(4,884) (3,165)
(16,541) (12,958)
(26,950) 18,313
502 (6,593)
(8,935) (220)
(45,567) 40,332
(34) 31
(123) (179)
(45,724) 40,184
214 (119)
(45,510) 40,065
141 -
(45,369) 40,065
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GEEEREMEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

2024 2023
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Mt FTET FET
(Loss)/profit for the year TH AT EN
attributable to: TEE (FE) 8F:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETE F =N (45,385) 40,070
Non-controlling interests E (125) (5)
(45,510) 40,065
(Loss)/profit and total THATEERFE
comprehensive income (E18) BFK
for the year attributable to: ZENFEE:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NECTE SN (45,244) 40,070
Non-controlling interests FE 1 AR = (125) (5)
(45,369) 40,065
(Loss)/earnings per share KRBTSR AE
attributable to owners R (FB) &R
of the Company (HK cents) (#&AL) 17
— Basic —EH K (2.95) 2.60
— Diluted —¥E N/A 7B A N/A i A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
GaMBRAR

At 31 December 2024 R=—Z-—m&+—-A=+—A

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment in an associate
Deposits
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Amount due from

a securities broker
Loan receivables
Financial assets at FVTPL

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities
Bank loan

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Net assets

FRBEE

ME BENIRE
EREEE
R—RBERRZKRE
Be

EENIRE E

RBEE
A
FEUE 5 B3R e
H A & W R IR
& — # 78 H 8 42 5R 1A

FEU & 3R
BAVEFABRZ
TREE

Re RRITRES

RBEE

e E FERR N
H A & 15 5RR
HE&E
RITER

RBEEFE
REERABRE

FRBRE

EEFH

Note
kA

18
19
20
21
31

22

23

24
25

26
27

28
29
30

29

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TAET
78 =

76 110

205 205

= 23

359 338
5,474 4,260
22,658 33,933
442 3,394
91,687 115,464
80,971 78,270
29,877 28,366
231,109 263,687
30,409 18,598
957 752
577 1,401
31,943 20,751
199,166 242,936
199,525 243,274
1,620 =
197,905 243,274
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma BRI ER

At 31 December 2024 HW=—Z-—&+=-A=+—8

Equity

Capital and reserves attributable
to owners of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Non-controlling interest

Total equity

The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 175
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26 March 2025 and were signed on its behalf

by:

ZHU Yuqi
RFEF
Director
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i
& 75 32
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FEIE A an
MR

Tong Hei Ming Andrew
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Director
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2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TAET
9,231 9,231
189,254 234,498
198,485 243,729
(580) (455)
197,905 243,274

FORITSEZBREMBHRERE R =
E_RE=ZA-_t+ BEEEgit
ERFEETIE THTIHNESEARK
FE:



At 1 January 2023

Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year
Share options lapsed

At 31 December 2023 and
1 January 2024
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive expense
- Release upon deregstration
of a subsidiary (note 37/cf)

At 31 December 2024

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HAREREER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_-_NE+-A=1+—HALEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAERARE
Other Share Non-
Share Share capital ~ Contributed ~ Translation options  Accumulated controlling
Capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve losses  Subtotal interest Total

i RAGE HtEAEE EONL ] RERE  BRERE  ZHEE Nt FERER @zt
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T Fhr i T T i i Thr i i
(note 35B)()) ~ (note 35(bJ))  (note 33(b)fis)  (note 35(biy)  (note 356
(WE3500)  (Fasoin)  (HE50i)  (Esm)  (HE3560))

K-E-=%-§-A 9,31 129910 14,945 441,253 (141) 2819 (394358 203,65 (450) 203,209
RERRTR2ELREE

= 5 5 = = 5 40000 40,070 5 40065

BRELR - - - = = (2819 2819 5 5 5

9,231 129910 14,945 41,253 (141) - (1469 43729 (455) 243274

TEEEE - - - - - - (45,385 (45,389) (125 5510)

EH2ERY
-HE-BRBLRRER
(W#E37) - - - - 141 = = 141 S 141
R-B-mE+-A=1-8 9,31 129910 14,945 441,253 = S 396854 198,485 (580 197,905
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z—

Operating activities
(Loss)/profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Fair value (gains)/losses on
financial assets at FVTPL:

- Unrealised

- Realised
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Share of result of associate
Written back of other payables
Loss on deregistration of

a subsidiary
Impairment of right-of-uses assets
Allowance for inventories
Gain on termination of lease
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Provision/(reversal of provision)

for ECL on:

- trade receivables

- loan receivables

- other receivables

Operating loss before working
capital changes
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Decrease in trade and

other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in loan
receivables
Increase in bank balances
- Segregated accounts
Decrease/(increase) in amount due
from a securities broker
Decrease/(increase) in financial
assets at FVTPL
Increase/(decrease) in trade and
other payables

Cash used in operations
Income tax refunded
Interest element of lease
Interest paid

Net cash used in operating
activities

—ME+ZA=t—-RILLEFE
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Wit
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2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(45,724) 40,184
380 113
(502) 6,593
8,935 220
123 179
(36) (14)
34 (31)
(71) (111)
135 -
2,418 -
773 -
- (2)
- (29,253)
3,375 282
23,421 (17,583)
154 (1,012)
(6,585) (435)
(1,987) 498
7,684 34,897
(10,830) 3,272
(8,257) (1,103)
2,952 (3,394)
52 (10,109)
11,950 (26,696)
(5,021) (3,070)
237 4
(64) (72)
(59) (107)
(4,907) (3,245)




Investing activities

Interest received

Net cash outflow from disposal
of subsidiaries

Net cash from/(used) in investing
activities

Financing activities

Repayment of bank loan

Principal elements of lease
payment paid

Net cash used in financing
activities

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

Analysis of cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and bank balances
- House accounts
- Cash on hand

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

RERK
B A8
HEMBARMGRSE
ilaee s

REEME/ (FA)
BeRR

MERK
BRRITEK
ENEEMNRAE D

BMEXKAREFHE

ReMREFEER
B R

R—A—HzReREE

FERA

RT-ZHA=Z=+—HZES

KREEEER

RERRESEEB TN

RERBITE
-BEERF
-FEAE

Note
Wit

37(c)

37(a)

37(a)

27
27

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
36 14

- (68)

36 (54)
(824) (776)
(1,051) (1,252)
(1,875) (2,028)
(6,746) (5,327)
21,521 26,848
14,775 21,521
14,760 19,713
15 1,808
14,775 21,521
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

1.

GENERAL

SunCorp Technologies Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company
are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda and Unit 2305, 23/F, The Center,
99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, respectively.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The Group is principally engaged in processing and
trading of used computer-related components,
provision of securities brokerage, placing and
underwriting services, money lending service and
sales of clothes and beauty product.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRS
Accounting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA"). HKFRS Accounting Standards comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS");
and Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRS Accounting Standards that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
) =

a5 R R Ml

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #ZE—Z_—N&+-—A=+—ALFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS 3. RAFIIRLIETEEBRH
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BHREER G ER

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRS (a) ERFHEI RELIEBTB B

Accounting Standards

The Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards
and interpretation issued by the HKICPA for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2024 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current
Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with

HKAS 1 Covenants
Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback
Hong Kong Presentation of Financial
Interpretation 5 Statements - Classification
("HK Int 5") by the Borrower of
(Revised) a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand
Clause

Amendments to Supplier Finance
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Arrangements

The application of the new and amendments
to HKFRS Accounting Standards in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS 3. RAFIIRKLIETEEBRH

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued) BHREER S ER (#)
(b) New and revised HKFRS Accounting (b) BEMEERERZH

Standards in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards and interpretation that have been
issued but are not yet effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2024. These new and
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards
and interpretation include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 21 and HKFRS 1 - Lack of Exchangeability
BERGHERE2URNEAVMBREEMNE1HR (BFTAX)
— R A Rt
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 - Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments
BERMBREENEIRRERRBERELEINETHR (BETX)
- eMIANDBEKHE
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 — Contracts Referencing
Nature — dependent Electricity
ERMBREENFIRLBAMBREERETR (BFTAR) —
BREBERAGHNENED
Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 11
ERMBREENSHERNFELRE-F 1M
HKFRS 18 — Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
EREMBREEMNE ISR M BRR 2V REE
HKFRS 19 — Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures
ERMBREENF 19N -—FRAAREEEMNBLR  KE
Amendments to HK Int 5 — Presentation of Financial Statements
- Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause
ERREESH (BFIA) —HBHRRINB—ERA
HRBERAREREEGRTNTHERN DR
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
BERMBREENNF 105 REB G ERF285% (BRI X)
—REEREBENANGECE L HNEELESTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS 3. RAFIIRLIETEEBRH
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued) BHREER S ER (&)

(b) New and revised HKFRS Accounting (b) B FEM{E 1 KREMZH

Standards in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these new/
revised HKFRS Accounting Standards and Ints is
expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements except
for HKFRS 18 — Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements which may have impact as
follows:

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements”

HKFRS 18 will replace HKAS 1 “Presentation
of financial statements”, introducing new
requirements that will help to achieve
comparability of the financial performance
of similar entities and provide more relevant
information and transparency to users. Even
though HKFRS 18 will not impact the recognition
or measurement of items in the consolidated
financial statements, HKFRS 18 introduces
significant changes to the presentation of
financial statements, with a focus on information
about financial performance present in the
statement of profit or loss, which will affect
how the Group present and disclose financial
performance in the financial statements. The
key changes introduced in HKFRS 18 relate to (i)
the structure of the statement of profit or loss,
(i) required disclosures for management-defined
performance measures (which are referred to
alternative or non-GAAP performance measures),
and (iii) enhanced requirements for aggregation
and disaggregation of information.

The directors of the Company are currently
assessing the impact of applying HKFRS 18 on
the presentation and the disclosures of the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies
below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 5.

The material accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that
give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect
the entity’s returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., ERETFBHERER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Consolidation (continued)

(a) #EERE (&)

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date the control
ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
that results in a loss of control represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that subsidiary and
(ii) the Company's share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve
relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ll‘a-'l:l'

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z—

ﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ

—ME+ZA=t—-RILLEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position and consolidated statement of
changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders
and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment loss.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other
entities, are considered when assessing whether
the Group has significant influence. In assessing
whether a potential voting right contributes to
significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right
is not considered.

72 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED ##efi AR AR

4. EXREFHRER (&)

(a) :in‘vT = ,EE (nE

FFERERIELIFFE X
ﬁﬁi%ﬂK TZW%

AR HE RS o FRIE MR SR N AR
Aﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi R
""""" BERIEHZ2I - NER
BaXR LGB LAt
2ERmERA FERELS
2HNRFERNRMNEEBEER
2 T Uy o AR R IR R AR
REARAFEAAZHZ
D HC

BalkHEttzEbla&E
KREBDEERARRES
A B IR B RCR - B ot B2
B RS IR E A

+
KEER o

R R A H) B S AR R R -
KRB RARMKRERKA
R (B B 1R 51 iR o

=N
BEQBEBEASERAE
AREENER - BEATET

E2RER!] M“Z&%«MEAZ
RRR HHZEBER
SR KA %‘Jﬂﬂiéﬂ
ﬁﬁ”%l% ﬁ%?ﬁa/;

SERRAKFENAT
EYTETWEI’J AR R
(BREMCEERANER
BREE)REZE -FEE
ERERELTEYEARY
BN U ITEEERAAT
FHBRZENNEE R
BHREN -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., ERETFBHERER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)
(b) Associates (continued) (b) BBE QT (&)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in REE & N R/ E K

the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
in an acquisition are measured at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill
which is included in the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in an
associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

IN

FORMATION (continued)

(b) Associates (continued)

74 SUNCO

The Group's share of an associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses and other
comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group's net investment in the associate),
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. If the
associate subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share
of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate
that results in a loss of significant influence
represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the
fair value of any investment retained in that
associate and (ii) the Group’s entire carrying
amount of that associate (including goodwill)
and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity
method and does not remeasure the retained
interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

In the Company's statement of financial position,

investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

4. EXREFHRER (®)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation

(1)

(1)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end
of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is
the date on which the company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities.

(0 I RE

(1)

(11)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 &% 75

DRER £ I B

AEEENEEROY
BRI EENIER -
HMUZEREENEE
REREONEE ([
RERDIE-REY
BWMERTIAR R B
ENRZ27EEET (18
T2

RE&EBERYFFHE A
R B RAEER

RO EERE IER
ZEYRMR 7 E AWE
RBMERNEEEE
SNEHENEREER
BESREREHAKRD
ERETHRE HARB
B HUR T A A ) W Es e
BERENBSER -

RIFSNEE LN ANGTE
MFEBREENRBER
RXHAMERBE
B HARANGERL
BIEBUHEERERE
ONSRER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(1)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in foreign currencies are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all
the Group’s entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the
Company's presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ifi) Translation on consolidation (continued)

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

— Al resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of monetary
items that form part of the net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

4. EXREFHRER (&)

(d) M2 MERRE

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost less their residual values over the estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Over the shorter of

the term of the lease

or 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Leasehold improvement

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., ERETFBHERER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(e) Leases

(e) HE

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(e) Leases (continued)

4. EXREFHRER (&)

(e) HE (&)

80 Sunco

The Group as a lessee (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party
financing was received,

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases, which does not have recent third-
party financing, and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.qg.
term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is
available to the individual lessee (through recent
financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the group
entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., ERETFBHERER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(e) Leases (continued)

(e) HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(e) Leases (continued)

(f)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which
arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In such
cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16
and recognised the change in consideration as if
it were not a lease modification, and recognised
the change in consideration as negative lease
payments in profit or loss in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
first in, first out basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. The costs
of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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4. EXREFHRER (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ—

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(g) Recognition and derecognition of

(9) Ewu\ n\ iﬁwu\éﬂml

financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group's entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREHBRER (8

INFORMATION (continued)

(9) Recognition and derecognition of () BRRAKRILEAEMT
financial instruments (continued) H (&)
The Group derecognises financial liabilities AEBERAEBEEDER
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations BreEHsE MR g R
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. BREBARE KRILEER
The difference between the carrying amount cHEEREERE N K
of the financial liability derecognised and the ENRE(BREBEZE
consideration paid and payable, including any MRS EESMERES
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, B) 2 EZEBERIBEAER

is recognised in profit or loss.

(h) Financial assets (h) tREE

All regular way purchases or sales of financial FT B LA IE R R 1E B8 A Sk 8

assets are recognised and derecognised on a EZemEENKERXSH

trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales HAEBERE R AR LR -
are purchases or sales of financial assets that MEEBANHEERT

require delivery of assets within the time frame %5 05 B I P HE T 2 B

established by regulation or convention in the MERARNEEZ /M

marketplace. All recognised financial assets are BEBANHEE -FIECDHE

measured subsequently in their entirety at either RZEREEHDIREEK
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the RN FEETERENE

classification of the financial assets. RYESMEEZDEME °

Debt investments EHKRE

Debt investments held by the Group are rEERECEBRES

classified into one of the following measurement BANLTHES —EEE

categories: Al :

— amortised cost, if the investment is held — REHKA WEFEER
for the collection of contractual cash flows BEAREEREHNRE
which represent solely payments of principal nmE gERAERBA
and interest. Interest income from the ® RMBENR-KEF
investment is calculated using the effective BUWAKBER N XX
interest method. E

—  FVTPL if the investment does not meet the — BAVEFABZE M
criteria for being measured at amortised KREWTHFEREHEK
cost or fair FVTOCI (recycling). Changes in R A FEFT AHAM
the fair value of the investment (including T EKE(RIEE) 2
interest) are recognised in profit or loss. FRFAE-KE (BRE

FME)ZATFEZFHN

B R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(h) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment
meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit
or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at
FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as
other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
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(k)

(0

86 SUNCO

FORMATION (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRS Accounting Standards.
An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless, at the end of the reporting period, the
Group has a right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(N

Borrowings (continued)

Covenants that the Group is required to comply
with, on or before the end of the reporting
period, are considered in classifying loan
arrangements with covenants as current or non-
current. Covenants that the Group is required to
comply with after the reporting period do not
affect the classification at the reporting date.

(m) Trade and other payables

(n)

(o)

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the customer,
at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFEHEER (&)

IN

FORMATION (continued)

(o) Revenue and other income (continued)

88 SuNco

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
wholesale’s specific location (delivery). Following
delivery, the wholesaler has full discretion over
the manner of distribution and price to sell
the goods, has the primary responsibility when
on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when
the goods are delivered to the wholesaler as this
represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment
is due.

Commission income from securities dealing and
brokerage services is recognised on trade date
basis when the relevant sale or purchase of
securities transactions is executed.

Commission income from placing and underwriting
service is recognised in accordance with the terms of
the underlying agreement or deal mandate when the
relevant significant act has been completed.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(p) Employee benefits

(1)

(1)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to
profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the
employer MPF contributions expected to be
offsetted as a deemed employee contribution
towards the LSP obligation in term of HKAS 19
paragraph 93(a) and it is measured on a net
basis. The estimated amount of future benefit
is determined after deducting the negative
service cost arising from the accrued benefits
derived from the Group’s MPF contributions
that have been vested with employees, which
are deemed to be contributions from the
relevant employees.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

IN

FORMATION (continued)

(p) Employee benefits (continued)

(ili) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment
of termination benefits.

(q) Borrowing costs

(r)

90 SUNCO

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the
grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the
period to match them with the costs they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., ERETFBHERER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(s) Taxation (s) ®i1E

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss because of
items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets generally are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and
at time of transaction does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

IN
(s)
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FORMATION (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(s)

(t)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
The Group recognises a deferred tax asset related
to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised and a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired,
it is written down as an expense through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. If this is the
case, recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal of
the individual asset or the cash-generating unit
("CQU").
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(t)

(u)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates
that reflect the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment
is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro
rata amongst the other assets of the CGU.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount
caused by changes in estimates are credited to
profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the
impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL
on investments in debt instruments that are
measured at amortised cost, trade receivables
and loan receivables. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of
the respective financial instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., ERETFBHERER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)
(u) EREERME (&)

(u) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The ECL on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date, including time value of money where
appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EREFEHEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(u) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v EHMEERE (&)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument
at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group's
debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental
bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of various
external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core
operations.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument;
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(u) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

— existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;
and

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

IN

FORMATION (continued)

(u) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

98 SUNCO

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of
default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term, and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of “investment grade” in accordance
with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has
an internal rating of “performing”. Performing
means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there are no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

RP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED iR AR AT

4. EXREFHRER (&)

(u) TREERE (H8)

EREBRBEZIZN (E)

EEALAMRE  WREE
FHeMTARAERA
BEREEERR MAKH
R ITANEER
% B 1) 2 FE R A SR I 7R
ZRMW-EATBRT &
BMITASRHEAAEER
EEERER

(i) EMIAEERERY
[ -

(il EBABRBHEENE
THHNEHNRERE
B K

(i) &R E AR B K H
TR EEE R EEER L
SHISERARITAL
ReRERBHEN-

REBRR EREBERME
MWEER BEEMIEE
AERBTRER] HNEE
SNERRE A EEMAMESR
AR RTEHOR] AZ2
MEEEAREERERR-
BHOREXZEHTABR
Y BRAE BB

7N & B F B B R A DA R
FERRESEELZENZ
RER AR W EE R
R B R HERT - 1T MR X IR
% B 5 70 SR IA 78 H A L A
EERROBEZIEN-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., ERETFBHERER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(u) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(u) EEEERE (8)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

— when there is a breach of financial covenants
by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(u) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating to
the counterparty’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the counterparty a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

— the disappearance of an active market for

that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., ERETFBHERER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(u) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(u) EEEERE (8)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, including when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made
are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above.
As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

IN

FORMATION (continued)

(u) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

102 SUNCO

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance
for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but
determines at the current reporting date that the
conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met,
the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current
reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (continued)
(w) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group's
position at the end of the reporting period
are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the directors are required
to make judgements (other than those involving
estimations) that have a significant impact on the
amounts recognised and to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
the directors of the Company have made the
following judgement that has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).

4. EXREFHRER (®)

(W) ERREH

EREEHEAEERTES
HI R R 00 B B8 O & B A ¥R
THREHRABRSMH X
SHEREMBHRERT R -
TEHAESHONREHR
EMHMREEE KA
RIS AR M AP 4R FR

ERHEHREEME

F& PR P sEAPT A AN 52 B 2 & 5T IR
R EFAFLYMERLE
BERFEZHEH OFRETE
fRoN) RAEHAREEANRE H
KR EScEERABRE
Bz A RER -Hr R ARR
RIDERBEER LA SN
B2 At R & - BFR 4 R AT RE
B & F 1A AT

et REBARR S FERT W
Heither Bl B EES
BRI 28R IR R
AT 2 NS DSE S
SREARE - BIRME T B R MR 2R A
Faﬁﬁﬁiﬁ°

RSt RRNEZHE

RERGBERHBET A2
FREFEFELATHEA MK
BERERBBAZATEN
HIEr (HERZF 8 M fhat /Y H B BR
Sh BB NEEE) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 % 103



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. EEHE R FEMET (80
ESTIMATES (continued)
(a) Significant increase in credit risk (a) S EE g = 1E N
As explained in note 4(u), ECL are measured as AR BT sE4(u) R R - TR HR S
an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage EEERFIBRREERS
1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage RINEAEHREEEBEED
3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its BETE AR FE2RE X
credit risk has increased significantly since initial FIRBREERETBELSE
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what EFBENRETE-EER
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. HEERBRB L HERIE
In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset BEEEIMEE AF2MEE-
has significantly increased, the Group takes into EEU B RE LR FOHRIL
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable ERATHEKEERREZE
and supportable forward-looking information. ENAZR-RIABEERN
EERBESEEILMNE

AREBEEBEAERASE
WEERTEUREEEE -
(b) Principal versus agent (b) TEEFTAEREA

When another party is involved in providing ERZ— A RAEFIREMH
goods or services to a customer, the Group FRBER RNEBEETE

o B H

\
/

ju|
=1t

determines whether the nature of its promise HEAHNHEERIEHIERE
is a performance obligation to provide the EmE R (A ERRE
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group EERANBNBHNEE X
as a principal) or to arrange for those goods or ZER R — 7 (AAERR
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. RENREZFEREAR
the Group as an agent). The Group is a principal BeoMAEENE ma R
if it controls the specified good or services HETEPAIEHEEE
before that good or services is transferred to a m R B REEAREE
customer. EEA
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. EEHE R EEME (&)

ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Principal versus agent (continued)

(b) TEEEAEALEA

Revenue from processing and trading of used
computer-related components and sales of
clothes and beauty product are recognised at
point in time, when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been
shipped to the wholesale's specific location
(delivery).

The Group engages in the trading of used
computer related components and sales
of clothes and beauty product. The Group
concluded that the Group acts as the principal
in these transactions. The judgement is based
on indicators such as the Group is primarily
responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide
the goods within a specified timeframe. The
Group also bears inventory risk and has the
discretion to set prices. When the Group
satisfies the performance obligation, the Group
recognises trading revenue in the gross amount
of consideration as specified in the contracts to
which the Group expects to be entitled.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of trade receivables and loan
receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount
of impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables and
loan receivables based on the credit risk of trade
receivables and loan receivables. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is measured
as the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or
being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts
of trade receivables and loan receivables were
approximately HK$11,230,000 (2023: approximately
HK$17,068,000) (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$4,562,000 (2023:
HK$1,187,000)) and HK$91,687,000 (2023:
HK$115,464,000) (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$63,150,000 (2023:
HK$39,729,000)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, price risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Group is
denominated in HK$. The Group has certain
exposure to foreign currency risk as some of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in United States dollars (“US$"),
and Renminbi (“RMB"). The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets
and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the US$ is pegged against HK$ and the
risk of movements in exchange rates between
US$ and HK$ to be insignificant. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis is performed on the
movements in exchange rates between US$ and
HKS.

No sensitivity analysis has been performed
on the Group's financial assets and liabilities
denominated in RMB as the directors of the
Company are of opinion that they are not
material to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

(continued)

(b) Price risk

Bt 75 L B B R ()

(b) E1&E k2

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in equity securities
classified as financial assets at FVTPL (note 26).
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles. The Group's
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
securities quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower
(2023: 10% higher/lower):

e Loss before tax for the year ended 31
December 2024 would decrease/increase
by HK$8,097,000 (2023: profit before tax
increase/decrease by HK$7,827,000). This is
mainly due to the changes in fair value of
the financial assets at FVTPL; and

e accumulated losses for the year ended 31
December 2024 would decrease/increase by
HK$8,097,000 (2023: decrease/increase by
HK$7,827,000) as a result of the changes in
fair value of the financial assets at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (c) EERB

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial
loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
its operating activities (primarily trade and other
receivables, amount due from a securities broker
and loan receivables) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies,
for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk.

For financial assets whose impairment losses
are measured using expected credit loss
model, the Group assesses whether their credit
risk has increased significantly since their
initial recognition, and applies a three-stage
impairment model to calculate their impairment
allowance and recognise their expected credit
losses, as follows:

Stage 1: If the credit risk has not increased
significantly since its initial recognition,
the financial asset is included in stage
1.

Stage 2: If the credit risk has increased
significantly since its initial recognition
but not yet deemed to be credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is
included in stage 2.

Stage 3: If the financial instrument is credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is
included in stage 3.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

()

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group has concentration of credit risk in
certain individual customers. Approximately
90.1% and 89.2% of total trade receivables
outstanding at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were
due from top five trade receivables which exposed
the Group to concentration of credit risk. The
Group seeks to minimise its risk by dealing with
counterparties which have good credit history.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer
credit risk management. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer's past history
of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables arising
from the business of dealing in securities are due
within 2 trading days (2023: 2 trading days) after
the trade date and secured by client’s securities.
Trade receivables arising from other business are
due within 30 to 90 days (2023: 30 to 90 days)
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers other
than the cash clients of securities brokerage
business.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. To
measure the ECLs, trade receivables are grouped
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics,
such as industry and recognition of loss
allowance on a timely basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. KEAKRERE (&)
(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERB (&)
Trade receivables (continued) JEWE ZHE (&)
The following tables provide information about TREINEEBR_-_FT -
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for FR-_ZE-_=%+=A
trade receivables, as at 31 December 2024 and =+ —HASE @ E K
2023: Eo9ERZEERR KA
HEEEE2ER:
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEEBR BREAE B iR E
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FHExT FHBxT
As at 31 December RZ=-TE-MMF
2024 +=—R=+-—H
Past due [SFg:
Current Bl ER 0.7% 1,290 (9)
1 - 30 days 1230H 0.0% 7 -
31 - 60 days 31260H 17.9% 1,042 (187)
61 — 90 days 61290H - 4 -
Over 90 days 90H K E 32.5% 13,449 (4,366)
Total et 15,792 (4,562)

As at 31 December R-ZEZ=F

2023 +=—A=+—8H
Past due & A 5
0 - 30 days 0Z30H 1.0% 3,390 (34)
31 - 60 days 31E60H 0.0% 4 =
61 — 90 days 61Z90H 1.2% 2,834 (33)
Over 90 days 90H M 9.3% 12,027 (1,120)
Total e 18,255 (1,187)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

(continued)

Bt 75 L B B R ()

(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERAB (&)

112 SUNCO

Trade receivables (continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected
lives of the trade receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance for trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

JEKE R (E)

BEHERXDERERE
BEBRGL -ZFHLEEE
HABURKRERERE L
BB R EERR B
IR N E R
5 0RRTA B B 2 OB R
MBI ER-

P ERE S ERNER
BEZBNT

2024 2023

HK$000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

At 1 January n—H—H 1,187 905

Impairment losses recognised FABABZBEEE

for the year 3,375 282

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 4,562 1,187
Other receivables M JEW HH

Other receivables relating to accounts that are MEHEABEBERNZE

long overdue with significant amounts, known
insolvencies or non-response to collection
activities, they are assessed individually for
impairment allowance. The Group recognised
the provision for ECL by assessing the credit
risk characteristics of debtor, discount rate and
the likelihood of recovery and considering the
prevailing economic conditions.

RP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED iR AR AT

B -EXMEHNEEXTEE
BF5E R 8 2 &g W
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)
(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERAB (&)
Other receivables (continued) At fEWFIE (&)

TR H b YRR B8

Movement in the loss allowance for other

receivables during the year is as follows:

BE2HOT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ES T EPLE HE3WH @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIL THL THL THL
At 1 January 2023 RZBZ=%—-F—H 1,250 - 1,125 2,375
Written off of ECL BHEEEENS - - (1,000) (1,000)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF - - (125) (125)
Reversal of provision for ECL BHEEFRRERD (1,012) - - (1,012)
At 31 December 2023 and RZFZ=5+_H
1 January 2024 :+ B R
—Z-_mE-A-H 238 - - 238
Provision for ECL BERERBRAR 154 - - 154
At 31 December 2024 —T_ME
Jr_ﬂ =t+-H 392 - - 392
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ES TN FIRE FIRR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
As at 31 December 2024 R=B-ME
+ZA=t-H
Other receivables and deposits, gross  EfEKFEREE LR 7,018 - - 7,018
Less: Loss allowance W EREE (392) - - (392)
Other receivables and deposits, net ~ EtENFBERESFHE 6,626 - - 6,626
As at 31 December 2023 RZBZZF
+t-A=1+-H
Other receivables and deposits, gross  EEKFEREE LS 4,752 - - 4752
Less: Loss allowance W EERE (238) - - (238)
Other receivables and deposits, net ~ EAEMRFIBERIEEFE 4514 - - 4514
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

(continued)

Bt 75 L B B R ()

(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERAB (&)

114 SUNCO

Other receivables (continued)
Loan receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approval and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken for the
recoverable amount of the loan receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual's loan receivables
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment loss is made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk
for each of their new and existing clients before
standard payment terms and conditions are
offered. If there is no independent rating, the
Group assesses the credit quality of the customer
based on the customer’s financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits
are set based on internal or external ratings in
accordance with limits set by the directors of
the Company. The utilisation of credit limits
is regularly monitored. Loan receivables are
repayable in accordance with the terms of the
loan agreements and all loan receivables are
recoverable within 1 year.

In determining the ECL of the Group's loan
receivables, the management assessed the
expected losses individually by estimation based
on general economic conditions of the relevant
industry in which the debtors operate, value
of any pledged assets, financial position of the
debtors and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date.

RP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED iR AR AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MBEREE ()

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERB (&)
Loan receivables (continued) JEWE L (&)
The Group has concentration of credit risk in AEERETERNEFEE
certain individual customers. As at 31 December FEERRBERPHBERL R
2024, the carrying amount of the largest loan T_MFE+-_A=+—8"
receivables were approximately HK$9,646,000 EAEKEREEBEALD
(2023: HK$23,104,000) and was approximately 9,646,000 T (=T ==
11% (2023: 20%) of the Group’s total loan F 123,104,000 7T ) & A A
receivables. The Group seeks to minimise its risk SEEKRERBELH11%
by dealing with counterparties which have good TEZZF20%) oK
credit history. EFAEREAFRIFEERSL

ZRPHFETRIENEE
PR E R o

2024
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEER RHEAE EERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET FHExT
Loan receivables FEWE R 40.8% 154,837 (63,150)
2023
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHIESE X BRERE E B A
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FHET TFET
Loan receivables e & 25.6% 155,193 (39,729)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued)
Loan receivables (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for loan
receivables during the year is as follows:

At 1 January 2023

Transfer from stage 1 to stage 2

Transfer from stage 2 to stage 3

Provision/(reversal of provision)
for ECL

At 31 December 2023 and
1 January 2024
Transfer from stage 2 to stage 3
Provision/(reversal of provision)
for ECL

At 31 December 2024

RZB-ZF—-F—H
mERRERERER
mEERERERIER
RAEERRRE/

(BRER)

AZEZ=4+-A=1-H
kZZ-mE-A—-H
mEERBREFEIRE
BHEEERRE/
(BERm)

W-E-NE+-R=1+—H
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6. MBEABEE (&)
() EERkE (&)
JERKEF (8)
FR BRERNEERE
2EHmT
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1EE kR E3ER @st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
TER TER TER TER
6,158 51,154 - 57,312
(6,159) 6,159 - -
- (1,136) 1,136 -
1,166 (21,429 2,680 (17,583)
1,165 34,748 3,816 39,729
- (12,385) 12,385 -
2,710 (13,475) 34,186 23,421
3,875 8,888 50,387 63,150




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MEEKERE (&)
(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERB (&)
Loan receivables (continued) JEWEZ (&)
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1EER F2ME B 3 E FohHy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FTiERx TERT THER
As at 31 December R-E-_mE
2024 +=-A=+-H
Loan receivables, gross F%H&%%M%E 73,817 30,633 50,387 154,837
Less: Loss allowance A ERE (3,875) (8,888) (50,387) (63,150)
Loan receivables, net BURETFE 69,942 21,745 - 91,687
As at 31 December R-E-=%
2023 +=ZA=+-8
Loan receivables, gross EHEZBE 24,269 127,108 3,816 155,193
Less: Loss allowance B EERE (1,165) (34,748) (3,816) (39,729)
Loan receivables, net U ETFE 23,104 92,360 = 115,464
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)

(continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (d) RENE ©E B2

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
long term.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of reporting
period of the Group's non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates, or

AEBMNBKRARTEHHER
BRINTEHABESRE

AR H #4152 03R © %
ﬁl*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%mm

RBEEHRAKEIFETLE
TRABZRBKANERE
%*%ﬁﬁumi(@%&
BRNKRFEZFENK
&m&&ﬁﬂ+uﬁ-MM
EHRZBETHNERFE

if floating, based on rates current at the end of Zﬂ SAF R B &R
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group SEATRAXNOKEA
can be required to pay: RGP AN T -

On demand Total
or less than Between Between  undiscounted
1year 1and2years 2 andb5 years cash flow
EER KRR
PRE 1328 225% REREAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHL T TEx

At 31 December 2024 RIB-ZWE+=ZA=1- El
Trade and other payables BN EHER L EMER K 30,209 - - 30,209
Lease liabilities %EEEE 1,060 979 712 2,751
Bank loan RITER 589 - - 589
31,858 979 712 33,549

At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=£+ZA=1- EI
Trade and other payables ERESERREMEMNK 18,398 = = 18,398
Lease liabilities HERE 767 = = 767
Bank loan RITER 1,472 - - 1,472
20,637 - - 20,637
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)

(continued)

(e) A= P2

(e) Interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily
relates to variable-rate bank balances. It is the
Group’s policy to keep its borrowing at floating
rate of interest so as to minimise the cash flow
interest rate risk.

The Group's loan receivables, lease liabilities and
bank loans bear interests of fixed interest rates
and therefore are subject to fair value interest
rate risk.

Except as stated above, the Group does not
have other significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period, its income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis on cash flow interest-rate
risk has not been presented as the reasonably
possible changes in market interest rate will
not have significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

AEENR S RENXME
o E B EIEB A KRITHE
HAEM AEEZBRERR
HLFBFERABRBE A
IR 2w E N X R R E
RIK

AEEZEKER BESR
ERRTERDYRETF
it 8 FAEREATE
R L5 o

Br bt E SN AREBREE
HARYBEMERGFEE
EREE HRAREER
TRE XD NEHHAF

ERIETE-

R MH MRS IE A B
EHR T eHAEE R
EMBBMREEEARE
BMAERZEINREREFN X
a2 ) R E AT o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

(continued)

(f) Categories of financial instruments at
31 December

Financial assets: TREE:
Financial assets at FVTPL BERAFEFABRZZ
TREE

Financial assets REIEK ARG EZ
at amortised cost EHEE

Financial liabilities: eWMAasE:

Financial liabilities REEK ARG EZ
at amortised cost TRIBE

(g) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values as at
31 December 2024 and 2023.
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B RERERE (&)

) A+=A=t+—H=z%
T EER

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
80,971 78,270
139,862 168,602
30,786 19,799
(9) 2F¥E

REVMBRAKRMEIH
rEEs2mEE RS B
BEMEREEEAERC-FT
THFERZEZ=F+=
A=+—Bz8812¥HE
BaE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

e Level 1 Fair value measured using only
valuations:  Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted
guoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.
e Level 2 Fair value measured using Level 2
valuations: inputs, that is, observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for
which market data are not available.
e Level 3 Fair value measured using significant
valuations:  unobservable inputs

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

7.

AVEE

T 2 712K 85 [ 50 40 5 M o 1
REEEEFENESBRTAR
T BMATEREENBH
£ERBIIRA T EH B A
ELZRFE=ZRREFETD
Bo-RFEAEMBENERT
£ 3 DU T (B 540 PR 0 98
NBREO A BEE R EE M

T -

cE A EBUE-—LBWARE
HfE: FEAFE DEF

BEEXRENGEA
Hi 2 ERMIB AR

EHRE-
e FM UFEZ—LE\ AR
e EBRFE BIRERN

BE-—MHREZAE
R ABEB ALT
ERERTAERE
AEBE - TR B RS

ABIR B AT BAS T

S BIE 2 B ABUE -
cE=ZR UBXTAHBERHA
fBE: BEAERFE
AEENBRRANRERELY
BRREms ENERE H
RE=ZEREHRTER—EE
B BEBAREL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AFEE (8

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at R+T-—A=+—HZA¥HE
31 December: f& AR IEE
Fair value measurements using:
2024 —E-ME AYEHEEAUTER:
Description ik Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
5% E-H B4 #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$"000
TR TET TET TR
Recurring fair value REMATHEIE:
measurements:
Financial assets tREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEFABRL
— Listed equity securities - ERAES 80,971 - - 80,971

Fair value measurements using:

2023 —EC-=# ATEGFEFAUNTER:
Description it Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 F-& F=R 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THET THET
Recurring fair value BEMATHEGE:
measurements:
Financial assets tREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRTEFABRLZ
tRBE
- Listed equity securities — FTRAES 78,270 = = 78,270
During the year ended 31 December 2024, there BHE_ZT-_MF+_A=+—
were no transfers in the fair value hierarchy between AIFFE F—HREEF-_LHA
Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level FEEH 2 HEBERLE AL
3 (2023: Nil). B TNEEAE-RHIEFES

FER (T _=F:8\E)-
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REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue

A M AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

8.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major products or service line for the

year is as follows:

Revenue from contracts
with customers within
the scope of HKFRS 15:

Disaggregated by major
products or service lines

— Processing and trading of used
computer-related components,
clothes and beauty product

— Commission from securities
dealing and brokerage services

— Commission from placing and

underwriting service

Revenue from other sources:
Interest income from money

lending services
Interest and related income
from securities

Total revenue

EBPBRELER
FISKEAER 2
EEEHWE:

REZEMRIREE
25> 1y B 48

—REMEE-FEH

AEEAH - RE R
EREMR
—-BHFBEENECLRT
ExzAe
-BEERBHERBELEZ
Be

H At Wy 35 SRR
BERBELEZMBWA

ERELEZNE N
WA

U

iz
Wy 2% BA 48

FAREEZEMARBGRE D
BEFA#WmAMAmT :

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FET
26,921 52,867
69 194

- 782
26,990 53,843
11,831 12,235
55 210
11,886 12,445
38,876 66,288
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

8. REVENUE (continued) 8. Uz (#)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued) Wi BA AR (4&)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of REEBRNUTETEEMSZ LM
goods and services at a point in time in the following BRE-—KEREESm LR
major product line and geographical regions: BEE W -
2024 2023
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Timing of revenue recognition: WA
At a point in time RE—B 2 26,990 53,843
Geographical market: A TR
People’s Republic of China ("PRC") FEARKEME ([FHEH])

(including Hong Kong) (BERE) 5,295 38,798
India HE - 388
Indonesia HE femmaE 9,855 12,433
United States of America ("USA") EFRAZREH ([EH]) 380 1,102
Singapore N 4,755 —
United Arab Emirates (“EAB") FIH{aEE S B R E

(TPIBEE ) 3,160 -

Sri Lanka Hr2Em~R 2,592 —
Others Hity 953 1,122
26,990 53,843
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9. OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES, NET

Bank interest income

Sundry income

Government grant (note)

Exchange difference, net

Gain on termination of lease

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Loss on de-registration of
subsidiary (note 37(d))

Written back of other payables

A M AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

9. Htt MmN EEFH

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

|ITH B A 36 14

FMIEWA - 378

BB (H7at) 37 =

X =R FHE (6) 2

B W - 2

HEWN B QR WS - 29,253
AHE-—EMBARELZ

B8 (K:237(d)) (135) =

i 85 B 4th FE < 5RIE 71 111

3 29,760

note. The amount mainly represents the receipts from
Government Funding Scheme-SME Export Marketing
Fund provides by the Hong Kong government. The
conditions of the government grant were fulfilled
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Hiet

ZEFRBEDNEBEARTS
BT IRHO BT EBE & —
RN ETISHEE S R
ZRBE-BINEB 2 IKHE
REBEZ2-_Z_N&F+ A
=+ —HILFEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are identified
as the chief operating decision maker of the
Group for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessments.

The Group has three operating segments as follows:

(i) Processing and trading of used computer-related
components, clothes and beauty product;

(i) Money lending services; and

(iii) Provision of securities brokerage, placing and
underwriting services.

The Group’'s reportable segments are strategic
business units that offer different products and
services. They are managed separately because
each business requires different technology and
marketing strategies. The accounting policies of the
operating segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies. Segment profits or losses do not
include realised and unrealised fair value gains and
losses on financial assets at FVTPL and unallocated
administrative expenses, finance costs and income
tax expense. Segment assets do not include financial
assets at FVTPL and other unallocated corporate
assets. Segment liabilities do not include unallocated
corporate liabilities.

As the Group plan to provide more reliable and
relevant accounting information in financial reports,
the chief operation decision maker of the Group
adjust the statistical calibre of segment report. As
such, the segments were combined as trading of
used computer-related components, clothes and
beauty product.
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(i) BEBEHELL KEERBH
AR 7 o

REBWNIUE2RHSBARET
ﬁ%&'ﬂ&ﬁﬁ%ﬂ’]ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%iuo
EEE’\TW¥5‘“§EHTTWEUTT&
MERE WEBEEUE2RY
uB KESENSTBURARE
2T BURMEE o 5 3% FI 2k &
BABERAFEF AR Z
CREEZEEBR N AER
EOZTEJ%Z s RBERERD @Eﬁﬁ(
MY BEKNAKRAEHAR-
DEEETBBEEAFERA
?éﬁ_ﬁtz/i\%ﬂ;ﬁ?&ﬁﬁﬂi”@ﬂ
Té? NHEBBEFIBEXRD
RNAIAE-

AR AEBEE R B RER
HEMAEMBBZETER
AREBI7EELCEREEALR
DEBREZHAAOE AL 3%
ENHEEGHAEE _FEM
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about operating segment profit
or loss, assets and liabilities

For the year ended
31 December 2024
Revenue

Segment loss

Fair value gain (losses) on
financial assets at FVTPL:
- Unrealised
- Realised

Unallocated expenses

Unallocated income

Share of result of associate

Finance costs

Loss hefore tax
As at 31 December 2024

Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #ZE—Z_—N&+-A=+—ALFE

10. 7 &R EH (@)
FREE s MENHEE -

EEREGEZER
Trading of used
computer-related Provision of
components, brokerage,
clothes and placing and
heauty product underwriting
EE-FEH Money services
BBAHK RER lending RHLL EBE Total
XPER HE REERE% st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEn ThR ThR ThR
ot L
tZA=t-BLEE
Wi
ABER
ROTEA ARG SREEY
ATENE (BR):
-RER
-E2R
APRFX
AARMA
EIEBRERR 34
REKA
BHAEE
R-2-EE+-A=t-H
NHEE
AOREE
L
AAERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about operating segment profit
or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

10. 7 HREH (@)

BREED R ENHEIE
EEREEZER (#)

Trading of used
computer-related Provision of
components, brokerage,
clothes and placing and
beauty product underwriting
BE_FEK Money services
R e lending  RESR KE Total
£BEm n& RBHER® s
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T i i TEx
For the year ended BE-3-c=f
31 December 2023 tZAZt-BLEE
Revenue g 52,867 12,235 1,186 66,288
Segment (loss)/profit A8 (E8) /EF m 26,941 (3,732) 23,481
Fair value losses on EATENABE SREEY
financial assets at FVTPL: ATEER:
- Unrealised -KE5 (6,593)
- Realised 085 (220)
Unallocated expenses APERX (5,733)
Unallocated income AAEBA 29,397
Share of result of associate EiEMELNR 55 31
Finance costs HENA (179)
Profit before tax BB AR 40,184
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-ZE+t-B=t1-H
Segment assets AHEE 27,133 117,887 21,604 166,624
Unallocated assets AOREE 97,401
264,025
Seqment liabilties HHER 2,836 7,554 6,892 17,282
Unallocated liabilities AORAE 3,469
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Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or oss:
Bank interest income
Written back of other payables
Interest expense
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Other material non-cash items;
Allowance for inventories
Impairment of right-of-use assets
Fair value losses on financial assets
at FVTPL:
- Unrealised
- Realised
Provision/(reversal of provision) for
ECLon:
- Loan receivables
- Trade receivables
- Other receivables

HENRERTERY
7 0
BMEMA
RHEATRRE
HERX
EREREINE
EHEAMRLER
FEnE
EREEENE
BAFEGFARRL

SREEZDVERE:

585
288
R
B8/ (R58E)
~BhEA
-BHEFER
~EhBNHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #ZE—Z_—N&+-A=+—ALFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Trading of used
computer-
related
components,
clothes and
heauty product
EE-FEH
R
BRRZRER
HKS'000
Tin

10.

Money
lending
BE
HKS'000
TR

2 EBE X ()
HAth o & &

BE-_Z_ME+=-RA=+—
BiIEEE

Provision of
brokerage,
placing and
underwriting
services
RitEL
BEL  Unallocated Total
BEEE ) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEn TEn Tén
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

DEBE R (&
Lo EBER ()

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information (continued)

\m tl/

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BHE_FT_=F+-_A=+—

HIEFE
Trading of used
computer- Provision of
related brokerage,
components, placing and
clothes and underwriting
beauty product Services
BE_TEK Mongy R
il Pl lending BER  Unallocated Total
RERERER g BERE AR a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tin Thn Thn Thn
Amounts included in the measwe of  SERTERFEHH
seqment profit or loss: 28
Bank interest income FHERA 6 - - 8 14
Written back of other payables A RRERE - - 111 - 111
Interest expense HERX - - - 179 179
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FREEEZIE 113 - - - 113
Other material non-cash items: EEAFREER
Fair value losses on financial assets ~ RATEFABELZ
at FVIRL: SHEARZATHESR:
- Unrealised -KER - - - (6,593) (6,593)
- Realised -BE% - - - (220) (220
Provision/{reversal of provision) REEEERER/
for ECL o (BEER)
- Loan receivables -EWER - (17,583) - = (17,583)
- Trade receivables -ERESEH 374 - 92) s 8
- Other receivables - WA (867) (124) - 1) (1,012
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

All non-current assets of the Group as at December
2024 and 2023 are located in Hong Kong. While
the geographical information of the Group’s revenue
from external customers by location of operations are
detailed below:

PRC (including Hong Kong) HE(BEES)
India N

Indonesia ENEREmE

USA E &

Singapore 7 03

EAB Pl B 2§

Sri Lanka HEBR

Others H A

10. 2 EHE R (@)
i & & #
RZE_NER_ZTE_=F
+ A AEBRNFBEFREE
EVNMNREE MASEEREE
UEBEISKRBINATRE 2 W
ZHEBEERFFMMT

Revenue from
external customers

REMREF 2B
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TET
17,181 51,243
- 388
9,855 12,433
380 1,102
4,755 -
3,160 -
2,592 -
953 1,122
38,876 66,288
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Revenue from major customers

Revenues from customers of corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group are as follows:

Customer A (note 1) XER (K1)
Customer B (note 1) BRZ (K1)
Customer C (note 2) XFPAR (Kit2)
Customer D (note 2) BET (Kiz2)

note 1:Revenue from sales of clothes and beauty product
segment.

note 2. Revenue from processing and trading of used
computer-related components segment.

11. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on lease liabilities HEBBEZAE
Interest on bank loan IRITERZF B
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10. 7 HREH (@)

REFEEF 2R HE
RIEEFEMAEBR BB
10% 2EFWz=MT -
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
— 14,978
— 19,401
7,672 7,665
4,540 -

Hiiz1: REHEERRKMEREMRD
Bz sk o

Brat2: kB —FEMBBAMTEE

BESH U
1. IR &

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FisT

64 72

59 107

123 179
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIEAF{ 1B — & B FIEH
(Over)/under-provision in prior years B EE (B

BiE) BETR
EXERLIR (M FE31)

Deferred tax (note 31)

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group’s
Hong Kong subsidiaries either did not have assessable
profit or had sufficient tax losses brought forward to
offset against current year's assessable profits.

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
under the two-tiered profits tax regime, profits tax
rate for the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of
qualifying corporations established in Hong Kong will
be lowered to 8.25%, and profits above that amount
will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
made for the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023 as the Group's PRC subsidiary did not generate
any assessable profits during the years.

12.Fr8% (%) BX

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT TAET
(237) 119
23 -
(214) 119

BHE_T_MFR-_T=F
+-—A=+—BHULEFE FEF
BRI RREEE W HRE AR
H REAXEBRBHEB QA
WARELERRD G NKEEER
WMEIBBEAREEEE A
FERRBAEF -

HE_Z_MFER-_FT=_=F
+ZA=+—HLFE REF
BRAEH REBXNILHE
&1 % 52,000,000% T 2 FE
R 2 MERRGHERE
8.25% ' MiBiBZ & ¥ 2 % M
R E16.5% 2

WEFHE_ZT_NER_ZT
=+ -_A=Z+—HLEE
EHHRCE¥MEREERE RAE
ABAREEF RN E QR R ™M IE
FEATEELTMER G
o

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 % 133



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

(continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax (credit)/
expense and loss before tax multiplied by the Hong

12.Fr8% (%) BX

(&)

PRSH (%) /HXEEEF
ST R T AR BB 18 2 K

Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows:

(Loss)/profit before tax

Tax at the domestic income tax
rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of temporary difference
not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
not previously recognised

(Over)/under-provision in prior years

Income tax (credit)/expense

B ERINT
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
BRELRT (B51E) %A (45,724) 40,184
LA TSR E16.5%
TE-=F:165%)
FFE 2 HIE (7,545) 6,631
ERIE ETRENR 2
XEZBETE 2,091 169
EMBLETAETERZ
WAZ R E (89) (4,834)
RERZHIEBE
mBE 1,020 919
RERIERER
M2 4,870 (1,471)
B AE R ER
MIBEBEBIMBTE (324) (1,414)
BEFE (B
B BETR (237) 119
TR (Ke) /Fx (214) 119
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

13. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1B3.X8FE (FR) &R
The Group's (loss)/profit for the year is stated after REBAFE (EB) w55
charging/(crediting) the following: R (GFA)ATRIERE
B
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Auditors’ remuneration &
Audit services ZE R 690 680
Non-audit services B R - -
Cost of goods sold and services BRAETHZEEEmMK
recognised as an expense AR 75 B AR 27,638 51,093
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FABREEZINE 380 113
Allowance for inventories FERE (FFAHEERA)
(included in costs of sales) (note) (H1at) 773 =
Provision/(reversal of provision) for ~ JEHI{Z B E 1B & #E,
ECL on: (B ERD) -
— Trade receivables —EIWE S RN 3,375 282
— Other receivables — H & W Rk I8 154 (1,012)
— Loan receivables — W E K 23,421 (17,583)
Expenses related to short-term lease %2 HAFH S #HRIF X - 146
Gain on termination of lease LIEHEE W - (2)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries k=L NN - (29,253)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary F$#—HHBAREEZ
&8 135 -
Impairment of right-of-use assets ERAEEEZRE
(included in operating expenses) (FTARZERX) 2,418 -
Exchange difference, net ME N B 1R F R 6 (2)
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2024, Wi BEZZT-_WMF+=A
allowance of slow moving inventories of —t+—BLEFE - FHERF
approximately HK$773,000 (2023: HK$Nil) have EREH773,0008 T ( =
been charged to the consolidated statement of T_=F:FTET)ERE
profit or loss. EEHRANAR-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Employee benefits expense EERMAX
(including directors’ (BIEESH:) :

emoluments):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances ¥ & - fE4L }2 £ 8L

Retirement benefit scheme RIKAE R B =X
contributions (note) (K1:E)
note:

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the "MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the
MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries subject to
a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee
and vest fully with employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, the Group had no forfeited contributions
under the MPF Scheme and which may be
used by the Group to reduce the existing level
of contributions. There were also no forfeited
contributions available at 31 December 2024 and
2023 under the MPF Scheme which may be used
by the Group to reduce the contribution payable in
future years.

136 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED ##ehi AR AR

14. BER/AAX
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TR
5,742 5,218
173 168
5.915 5,386

Mtaz -

AEERBEFB RN EATESTE
KO BFTERECERRBEERYES
mHeg M EeTE ([RESE
Bl) AEBEHAEBESITE 2 HK
REHFE 5% E (BUETE
Bz&e & B THBi1B1,500%&T)
mMEAEEFARESTSZEE
KR — BB EBA -

REBEEZFT-_NEER-_T==
F+-_A=Z+—BLFE &&E
ERaEesrElE T &R
Wt R % S & B R] R A EOR
DPEBHHRFIKFE - RZFZ
FRZIZEZ=F+ZHA=1T—
H #ESsr8| BT ME]HEHA
SEARR DR KFEEN#
TR 1508 AR R o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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—ME+ZA=+—-HILLEFE

14. BEER|AIMFREX (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ—

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (continued)

Five highest paid individuals EEEEHMAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during AEERFAN AL &E 5 M
the year included zero (2023: zero) director whose ATBEZE(ZZEZ_=%F:

TE)ES HF BN 5
2O A-HTRZ(ZF
= RB) ZFHEIWT

emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
in note 15. The emoluments of the remaining five
(2023: five) individuals are set out below:

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Basic salaries, bonus and allowances EA&A# & Ko #EBh 3,082 2,618
Bonus TE4T 94 58
Retirement benefit scheme RIREFIGT IR
contributions 86 76
3,262 2,752
2024 2023
No. of No. of
employees employees
BEAHE BE AH
Their emoluments were within BEZHESB
the following bands: AT &S -
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000/ 7T 4 5
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7.2
1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
5 5

@I—?—mﬂzﬁ—?——fﬁ
TZA=T—HLFE X&E
THERAEMLESE®FALX
S - ESEIMASIR AR
SERNRE IER/BER

f&-

During years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ emoluments
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. ZHU Yug RFFELE
Mr. TONG Hei Ming Andrew BERLL

Independent non-executive directors ~ BV HHTEE

Ms. HUANG Zhi ERME
Mr. MAN Yuan mE s
Mr. MA Kin Ling SRELE
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Hiz

(i)

15. EE /A K ER
(a) ESME

BE-_Z-_@mE+=A
=t+—BRLFE
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other benefits
benefits scheme Total
Fees ek EIKEF  emoluments
Be HtE R HE F: ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FER TER TER
- 180 16 196
- 240 - 240
120 - - 120
120 - - 120
180 - - 180
420 420 16 856




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15.EEE/RARER (E)
(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEM < (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZT-_=F%+=H
=+—HIFE

Contributions
Salaries  to retirement
and other benefits
benefits scheme Total
Fees ek EPRER  emoluments
e B a7 HELS ais
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wi TET THL FHL THEL

Executive directors HTEE

Mr. CHOW Hei Yin Terry ARB LA (1) - 313 16 329
Mr. ZHU Yug REERE - 287 8 295
Mr. TONG Hei Ming Andrew EERLAE (i) = 120 = 120

Independent non-executive directors BV FHTEE

Ms. HUANG Zhi =g\ el 105 - - 105
Mr. MAN Yuan mELE 120 - - 120
Mr. MA Kin Ling SRERE 180 - - 180
405 720 24 1,149
Notes: Bt e -
(i)  Mr. Chow Hei Yin Terry resigned as executive () FABEBLAN-Z-_=#
director on 25 September 2023. NAZ+EHBEETRITE
=,
(i) Mr. Tong Hei Ming Andrew was appointed as (il BEEREERZ-ZT_=F
executive director on 6 July 2023. tARNBEZAAMTE
=,
There was no arrangement under which a HEZ-_NFER-_T==
director or the chief executive waived or F+_A=+—BHILLFE"
agreed to waive any remuneration during the THEREEFXHZSTHRAE
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. No R EE 3k [A] B PR ZE {E fn] Er B
emoluments were paid by the Group to any B &2 HE o 2N 55 [ 3 % () (F A
of the directors or the chief executive of the BEEF AR EREITEA
Company as an inducement to join or upon EXNME EAEEMA
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of RIS &R (B B 1Y 2R - 3k
office. VERBEEREE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(b) Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 39, no other significant
transaction, arrangement and contract in
relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company and
the director’s connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

16. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year
ended 31 December 2024, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting period
(2023: Nil).
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15. 55/ ER (&)

(b) EERR G - ZHHEHN

ZERER

BB RE39RAT X B8 & SN MK
FRYMNAFEAIMER
AR A HEAETH B QA
BEFLEMEAEER
BEEMARRESERE
FXBEEALIRETERE
IEHEREEEAEAZE
KRR RHRELH-

16. R 2
BHE_FT_MWFF+_HA=+—
AEFEYERMNSERZIRN
B B RS B A R AR IR
BREREEANRE(ZE=_=
FoE|E)o



17. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

17. 8% (B#R) BF

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/ RARABBEAEBLHEREARAR
earnings per share attributable to the owners of the % (E1E) BFDBENLT
Company is based on the following data: BB E
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
(Loss)/earnings (E18) BF
(Loss)/earnings for the year attributable AR FF EF R E A
to owners of the Company for the (EB8/) BFz
purpose of basic (loss)/earnings per KRARIBEEAEBEFA
share (BB’ & (45,385) 40,070
2024 2023
‘000 ‘000
F] TR
Number of shares gl =
Weighted average number of ARFEERER
ordinary shares for the purpose of (E18) /'R
basic (loss)/earnings per share L 38 A N - 15 & 1,538,537 1,538,537
No diluted (loss)/earnings per share is presented for HR_ZE-_MFIYEBELDE
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, as TEER WERE_ZT_MFR
there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for TE =+ ZA=+—HI
2024. Additionally, as the outstanding share options FEZEREE (BB /&7
did not have any dilutive effect and was not included WAREZH I —F = =F 5
in the calculation of diluted loss per share for 2023. ANAT R BB AR (] B

AAGHEESREEBRRIL K
HEFEER-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ BMEKRRE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvement equipment
HENE B - Total
£ EERRE By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET AT
Cost A
At 1 January 2023 W-E-=%-f—H 2,314 442 2,756
Disposal of subsidiaries HE M B A A - (12) (12)
At 31 December 2023 R-_E-_=Z%+-RA=+—H
and 1 January 2024 K-Z-mE—A—H 2,314 430 2,744
Written-off s - (8) (8)
At 31 December 2024 R-B-ME+=-A=t+-8H 2,314 422 2,736

Accumulated depreciation R TERREE
and impairment

At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-=%—HA—H 2,314 442 2,756
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - (12) (12)
At 31 December 2023 RZE-_=F+-A=+—H

and 1 January 2024 RZTE-_ME—-A—H 2,314 430 2,744
Written-off k] - (8) (8)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-_ME+=-ZB=+—-H 2,314 422 2,736
Carrying amount RHEE
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-_ME+=ZA=+—-H - - -
At 31 December 2023 RZE-_=F+-A=+—H - - -
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19. RIGHT OF-USE ASSETS

At 1 January 2023
Depreciation
Termination of lease

At 31 December 2023 and
1 January 2024

Additions

Depreciation

Impairment

At 31 December 2024

A M AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

19.EFEEE
Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$'000
FET
R-_ZT-_=%—HF—H 169
e (113)
WIEMHE (56)
R-_EBE-_=F+-"A=+—HK
—T_mMF—HA—H -
NE 2,876
& (380)
BIE (2,418)
R-ZE-_WMF+=-HA=+—H 78

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$2,577,000
(2023: HK$752,000) are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of HK$78,000 (2023: HK$Nil)
as at 31 December 2024. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for

borrowing purposes.

Depreciation expenses on
right-of-use assets
Expenses related to short term lease
Interest on lease liabilities
(included in finance costs)
Impairment of right-of-use assets
Gain on termination of lease

EREEEZ
FEMAX
A EERERX
HERENFE
(REARTERCA)
EREEEZME
mIrEE ks

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in

note 37(b).

R-ZE-_WWEFE+=—A=+—H"
#492,577,0008 7L (ZE =%
752,000/% 7T ) B HH & B & 5 47
BE{E A E E78,0008 L (=&
—ZFEEAT)ERR -BEH
MABEHEEENERES
AN - T B R W0 e 0 AE fa] 32
H-THEBETBIEABRAE
R o

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRERT TAET
380 13

- 146

64 72
2,418 -

- (2)

FREERREREZHBH
P EE37(b)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

19. RIGHT OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 19. FAEE (&)

For both years, the Group leases an office and
warehouse for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 2 years (2023: 2 to
3.6 years), but may have extension and termination
options as described below. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable.

As at 31 December 2024, due to the continuous loss
of the money lending business, the management
of the Group concluded there was impairment
indication for the money lending business and the
Group's related right-of-use assets was allocated to
the money lending business's cash-generating unit
(the “"Money Lending CGU") for the purpose of
impairment assessment. The recoverable amount of
the Money Lending CGU has been determined based
on a value-in-use calculation which uses cashflow
projection based on financial budgets approved by
the directors of the Company, covering a five-year
period with pre-tax discount rate. Cash flows beyond
that five-year period have been extrapolated using
the estimated growth rate stated below.

Key assumptions used in the calculation are as
follows:

Net loss margin (in average 5 years)

Long term growth rate RHEIER R
Discount rate AL IR &
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FERX (FH59F)

RMEFEEAR  NEBSEER
HERLRENEBE-HESHOH
BlEMRR2F (T -_=F:2
£3.65F) WA BRIEHRRKIL
(AN SXFrat) - H & &R TS
REHEERED YEBEEEDT
[ &Y iR 3R B A5k - IO E A 1 K
Al A A BUB B ey B R B - K
SEEAAANERLEESR
Rl AT A TT RO AR -

RZE-_WF+—_A=+—8"
HREEBFEEE A58
ERERAEMEBEERLRBAE
B BETRENG A5E
WHBEERAEEEE PEREMN
BEEBHRESELESEM ([KRE
ReELEEN]) HWEHRSE
EBEMNAARESETREGSE
REBEFTEEET  Zit 85K
AEREAARESIENT
FHMBBENE S RERA
WIERM AT IR R ES BB
TFEHEzRERETIERT
SCRTEL B 1 AT I8 R SR HE T -

AEREANTIERERET:

2024 2023

(0.58%) N/A -1 E A
2.5% N/A I 3E A
10% N/A I 3E A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ﬁé‘ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁi

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

19. RIGHT OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 19. EREEE (%)
The above key assumptions were used in the value- RZZE_WMF+-_A=+—8"
in-use calculation of the Money Lending CGU as at EHERERSEAEMNZF
31 December 2024. The following describes each key AEEREFERLAFERE-
assumption on which the management has based LMTREEREEAFEEREIN
its cash flow projections to undertake impairment ETREAAMKECSEE
testing: ZREK
Net profit margin — Management determined net FHNEE-—EEERABERR
profit margin based on past performance and its MEEMSER2EAHEEF
expectation regarding market development. A=
Long-term growth rate — The long-term growth rate RAERX-—KRHAEREL &
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate BEMEReELEMBA AL
for the industry and the country in which the Money EMETEMNBRNRBH TS
Lending CGU currently operates. ERE.
Discount rate — The discount rate used is pre-tax and BRI E—FrE B IR R B
reflects specific risks relating to the Money Lending AR RN RENEREE
CGU. EEUMEBENSERR -
Based on the above assessment, the management ER Ll AEEEEED
of the Group have assessed the recoverable AENEReELEEMMAIIK
amount of the Money Lending CGU amounting to B2BANTETL Z2BER
approximately HK$ Nil which was lower than its HR T -_HWmF+_A=+—
carrying value as at 31 December 2024. Accordingly, AMBREE Al EXRHER
an impairment loss of approximately HK$2,418,000 PEABUMNBERE BHEE
(2023: HK$Nil) was recognised in the Group's Hertmsams R LK
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the WIEH (BIEREESFE A
year ended 31 December 2024 in respect of right- ’*b’li) AEBEERAEBEEHE
of-use assets on the basis of the Money Lending —E_NF+ZRAR=+—HI
CGU'’s past performance, management expectations FENGEEERAMERESR
for the market development and volatility in financial 72 TE SRR 1B B 18 492,418,000/8
markets including potential disruptions of the money T(ZEZ=F:T&x)°

lending business.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

20. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Unlisted equity investment:
Share of net asset

Name of entity Incorporation

£ B33
Blue Pool Ventures Limited Samoa
ERIBRAERAT BEET

20 R—EBEQTZRE

FLETRAKRE :
RBHEERE

Registered capital
HRUE-EN

1,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

1,0008 &R E &
1R THEBR

The following table shows, the Group's share of
the amounts of the immaterial associate that are

accounted for using the equity method.

At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:
Carrying amount of interest EmREE

Year ended 31 December:

Share of (loss)/gain

BEZ+=-HA=+—8H

IEFE:

IS (B1E]) ke
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2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THET
76 110
Percentage of
equity attributable  Principal
to the Group  activities
rEEE
EREZASE FEIH
25%  Investment
(2023: 25%) holding
5% RERR

(Z2-=%:25%)

TREINAEEDIEEAER
EARZTEARBERAZK

I o
2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET

76 110

(34) 31




21.

22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

DEPOSITS

Deposits with the Stock Exchange BRAEE
— Compensation fund —fEEE
— Fidelity fund —BRE®
— Stamp duty deposit —HERZS

Contribution of guarantee fund paid Bt &HERRLEE
BERAG (BRBEHE])
ERESHRK

ENBBEER2HE

to Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited ("HKSCC")
Admission fee paid to HKSCC

INVENTORIES

Ban (A1)

Merchandises (note)
Less: Allowance for impairment loss

Note: Merchandises mainly includes clothes and used
computer-related components.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, allowance
of slow moving inventories of approximately
HK$773,000 (2023: HKS$Nil) have been charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The allowance of slow-moving inventories was
caused by suspension of sales of clothes during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

R E R R R

21. % &

22. 7

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT TAET
50 50

50 50

5 5

50 50

50 50

205 205
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAET
6,247 4,260
(773) -
5,474 4,260

it BmEEBERER-F
B EEAN -

HzE_Z_NMF+-_A=+—
HIEFE BHEHTEREED
773,000 T (ZE =%
BIL)ERRABERAMBR-

HBHFERBIHRBE-T
“ME+ZA=+T—HBIEEFE
NEFHERKMAE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables arising from
the ordinary course of
business of dealing in
securities transactions:

— Cash clients
Less: Allowance for ECL

Trade receivables arising from
other ordinary course
of business, other than
business of dealing in
securities transactions

Less: Allowance for ECL

Sub-total of trade receivables

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
Less: Allowance for ECL

Total trade and
other receivables

EHRRHEEEHLZ
AEXEBE
EENRKE S
BRI
—REeEP

o REEE

BEERE

Hit B EXH6EE
ELXNEEES
B (BHFERD
BB XN

B EHESEERE

W E 5 B3N ET

Be  FANREAER
H & W5k
B R EEEERE

FEWE 5 R
HL 1 & U2 K TR 48 B
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23.ERNESIRFIREMER

IE

2024 2023

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
it FHExT FET
(a) 394 317
394 317

(b) 15,398 17,938
(4,562) (1,187)

10,836 16,751

11,230 17,068

(c) 11,820 17,103
(392) (238)

11,428 16,865

22,658 33,933




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES . EREFRIAREMELR
(continued) FRIE (4E)

(a) RHEEBEXBELEZE

(a) Trade receivables arising from the

business of dealing in securities

The Group seeks to maintain tight control
over its outstanding trade receivables and has
procedures and policies to assess its clients’
credit quality and defines credit limits for each
client. All client acceptances and credit limit are
approved by designated approvers according to
the clients’ credit worthiness.

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables
from clients and clearing house arising from
the ordinary course of business of securities
brokerage services are 2 trading days (2023: 2
trading days) after the trade date.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables arising
from the ordinary course of business of dealing
in securities transactions, based on trading date,
and net of allowance, is as follows:

0-30 days 0%30A

31-60 days 31260H
61-90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H K E

Trade receivables due from cash clients are
secured by clients’ securities, which are publicly
traded equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The
fair values of the securities as at 31 December
2024 were approximately HK$36,677,000 (2023:
were approximately HK$30,139,000). As at 31
December 2024 and 2023, all balances were
secured by sufficient collateral on an individual
basis.

W& 5 MR

AEBAREBEFER
WE e Y E SRR AR
BREFABRFABEETFR
MEEERURATEER
FHEERBE -EATFPH
—EEREEREGH
BEEBHABRERFH
SEEL-

RNEAKLCREZBEE
KREPELENEKRER
MEEFMBESRFMWES
KEHBAX S AHEME
XEHEBA(ZE =% M@
THH) -

EHERHEBERBZAREE
BBREL ZBKREZERR
(HBRBBER)BRER S B
HZ2| 2 fREe DT a0 T -

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRERT TET
4 3

3 4

4 5

383 305
394 317

EUWBRERFMNEKRE S
RERUBEEMES(REE
PHEEZ EWRAFES)
EEB - ZFHER_ZT =
F+-_A=+—HWRQA¥F
8 49 536,677,000 7T ( =
T~ =4 :#930,139,000/8
L) RZE-_MFR=F
—=F+-A=+—8"'Ff
ERBHYEEREERTT
R mIERT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(a) Trade receivables arising from the
business of dealing in securities
(continued)

In addition, the Group has a policy for
determining the allowance for impairment of
trade receivables without sufficient collateral
based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on
management’s judgement including the
creditworthiness, collateral and the past
collection history of each client.

In determining the recoverability of the trade
receivables, the Group considers any change in
the credit quality of the trade receivables from
the date the credit was initially granted up to
the reporting date and the fair values of the
collateral held.

The carrying amount of the Group's trade
receivables arising from the business of dealing
in securities are denominated in HKS$.

(b) Trade receivables arising from other
businesses

The Group allows a credit period from 30 to 90
days (2023: 30 to 90 days) to its customers. The
ageing analysis of trade receivables arising from
other course of business other than business
of dealing in securities transactions, based on
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0%30H

31 - 60 days 31260H
61 — 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H Mk
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23.ERNESIRFIREMER

FIH (#)
(a) RHEEBEXBELEZE

(b)

WE 5 R (&)

BN REERBEERE R
R WA A RT (A ERRR
BOREDMTEEEREN
HE (BRBEEPNIE
2 W m MR WG R )
EEARHEZRER DD
FEUE 5RO B R -

REERKEZERRZA
Yo B £ - AN B E B R W
BERFXEBVBEREESR
BEHEEEREBHILRE
EERMMFERRZA
FEZEREE-

AEBFREELFESTER
ZRERWE SEREANEEE
LA TCETE ©

HbXBEE2BKE
& BR7K

AEBEERETHEXKF30E90
B(ZZ=-=%:30%90H)
Z2IEEH-BREFRHEE
BN BHMEBRARE
EZEIRE SRR (N #E
HBERIBBERELHHZNZ
BREC DT T -

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TAET
532 2,595

750 758

3 -

9,551 13,398
10,836 16,751




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(b) Trade receivables arising from other

()

businesses (continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Credit
limits attributed to customers are reviewed twice
a year.

Details of impairment assessment of trade
receivables for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023 are set out in note 6(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade
receivables arising from other business are
denominated in US$.

Deposit and other receivables

Amount due from a subsidiary’s director of
approximately HK$3,010,000 (net of allowance
of HK$166,000) (2023: HK$3,517,000 (net of
allowance of HK$194,000)) was included in the
deposits and other receivables. The amount due
is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

24. AMOUNT DUE FROM A SECURITIES
BROKER

Amount due from a securities broker represents
deposits placed with securities broker for the trading
of listed investments, which is unsecured, bearing
interest at 0% to 0.01% (2023: nil) per annum and
repayable on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed
in respect of amounts due from securities brokers of
approximately HK$442,000 (2023: HK$3,394,000).
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, an
ageing analysis does not give additional value in view
of the Group's business nature.

23.ERNESIRA R HEHMEY

FRIH (#)

(b) EtEBELEZERKRE
Z MR ()

AEEREMETAHER
AEtHEERRPZER
BV HAAEZEFLZE
ERBE - FFPESNHEERR
BEFmETMNK e

REBEE_FT_MOMFE_FT
—=%+-—RA=+—81t
FERERKE SEREZNBE
FEEBHRE S MR
=Mt EE6(C) ©

XY VR TES Y
e % R 3 e 7R OB
FEEHE

(0 BERHEtEWRE

FEW—HKMBRARZES
Z FRIE#93,010,000 7T (30
BB #166,0008 L) (=
T - =4:3,517,000/8 7T
(F0BR B #5194,000/8 7T) )
Bt Ak & H M E KK
He-ElWeBAEIKT %
BRBEENKEE-

24. EW 38 5 R 42 TR 1B

RURBHFELREBEREARS £
MXEMGEREBHFELNTE
FoHABEEIKIF 1£0%£0.01%
TEC=FR)NEMNEZ
BERE WEEBRERKEE -WE
L FE W FE 5 48 40 3R IE #9442,000
BT (28— =4 3,394,000
BLT)IBBERRS T -AQAE
ERE BERAESENERE
BoREDIMIEBIMEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES 25. B E K
The ageing analysis of loan receivables based on the EWERNERRDITIZFHRE
remaining contractual maturity date: HWEEBR 2% :
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 — 90 days 0%90H 20,234 52,521
91 — 180 days 912 180H 35,176 37,429
181 — 365 days 1812365H 99,427 65,243
154,837 155,193
Less: Allowance for ECL BT EEBIERE (63,150) (39,729)
91,687 115,464
The Group’s loan receivables arose from the money AEBZRKREZRKRBNEE
lending business. e
The loan receivables are repayable in accordance FEWE R IRBE R W®E 2K
with the terms of the loan agreements and all loan REE BFAARKENRAIN—
receivables are recoverable within 1 year (2023: 1 FRKE (ZTZ=F:—%F)-
year).
The Group’s loan receivables contain clauses which AEBERRKEFRHERE DR
reserved the right at sole discretion to demand R TE BT a] B AT 2 SR BD R A& K
immediate repayment at any time irrespective BN EMER THRIERARS
of whether the borrowers have complied with EETHRERBITEENENK
the covenants and met the scheduled repayment B
obligations.
As at 31 December 2024, the Group's loan RZEZWF+—A=+—8"
receivables are denominated in HK$ and carried at REBNEKERABITEE
fixed effective interest rate ranging from 8% to 10% ZETEBRFEFMNENT8% E
(2023: 8% to 10%) per annum and with the terms 10% (ZEZ=F:8%%10% )
of 1 year (2023: 1 year). HECHBA—F(ZT==
F:i—HF)-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 26 RAFEFABRZZER
BE
2024 2023
HK$000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, A& Fh 2 AN %
at fair value ERVE 80,971 78,270
The equity securities listed in Hong Kong are held REBLETZBRAZFTIAR
for trading purpose and are measured at FVTPL in SENMBEALREEENE
accordance with HKFRS 9. The investments in listed HwEERFIRIZAFEF AR
equity securities that offer the Group the opportunity BB RAEBEIREKRBER
for return through dividend income and fair value BREWARRAFERZESD
gains. They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate. WO EMBRAFZBLHRE -ZER
The fair values of listed securities are based on BEUVEEFIHAXKESE £
current bid prices. MEFNATFEIEREBAI®
BABERE-
27.CASH AND BANK BALANCES 27. RE RWBITHEER
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Bank balances RITHER
- Segregated accounts for dealing —EERFEEZ
with clients” money (note) BALRPE (K7:F) 15,102 6,845
— House accounts —BBEEP 14,760 19,713
Cash on hand FEES 15 1,808
29,877 28,366
Note: The Group maintains segregated accounts with Brag: RNEBRBA ©REER
authorised financial institution to hold client money BYRP URBEEKA
in the ordinary course of business. BhHEEFE®-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

27.CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)

Represented by: =K
— Client accounts (note)
— House accounts

—BEERF

note:

As at 31 December 2024, include in bank balance -
client accounts of approximately HK$15,102,000 (2023:
HK$6,845,000) was money deposited by clients in the
course of business of dealing in securities. The Group has
recognised the corresponding amount in trade payables
(note 28). The Group currently does not have a legally
enforceable right to offset these payables with deposit
placed and use the clients’ monies to settle its own
obligations.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances of the Group are denominated in the
following currencies:

RMB AR®
us$ e
HK$ BT

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations. However, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.
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—EPFERFP (&)

27. R RBITHER (#)

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
15,102 6,845
14,775 21,521
29,877 28,366

Bret

R—ZEBE_WWFEF+_A=+—H"
FABRTEBRE -BFEREFPY
15,102,000 L (Z & = = F:
6,845,000 L) BREFREHR 5
E¥EBREAFEANES - AEED
RENE Z R R ER AR (K
FE28) c AL BB R M EEEAL
TERERN ATABE BT ARS K
ZERNERERFERATEFNZIER
TEHEB-

R|EHR NEB 2R KR
TTRBIE T EEEHE:

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET
35 52
2,501 2,512
27,341 25,802
29,877 28,366

AR R B BINE T ABTF
B8 SN O I 1R ) K A T - R BEE K
NEEERE-AM AEEE
7t FF BB IR 1L B ONE X
MIRTTHARBLBRSEME
M o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables arising from the HREHFRXZEEEKZ
BEXBERTEL

dealing in securities transactions: HYEfT & SR :

ordinary course of business of

— Cash clients - ReEEP
Trade payables from purchase of R E b B & ¥
goods arising from other

ordinary course of business, BroN) BIZEHIEE
other than business of BEmESEHERN

dealing in securities transactions & SR
Other payables and H A & 7T IR K

accrued expenses e XX
Provision for reinstatement cost 18 R AN B 45

(a) Trade payables arising from the business
of dealing in securities

The trade payables balances arising from
the ordinary course of business of securities
brokerage services are normally settled in two
trading days after the trade date except for
the money held on behalf of clients at the
segregated bank accounts which are repayable
on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, an
ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the nature of this business.

The carrying amount of the Group’'s trade
payables arising from the business of dealing in
securities are denominated in HK$.

2. BENESZRAREMER

IE
2024 2023
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ok FET FET
(a) 15,039 6,378
(b) 18 596
15,152 11,424
200 200
30,409 18,598

(a) RHEEEXBEENE
18 Z IR

EHFRLERBEBEEXSEA
BPELENENE SR
EHR—BRRXHHEMBMEM
BERZEAEE EREP
RBILRTEPBEAZE
CRABFEEE - BRARF
EERA ERREBNK
Bk oML EFEINE
B W ERBERE DT

AEEREEFEEERK
ZENEZERFOEEE
ABTEHE .
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(b) Trade payables arising from other

businesses

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on

the invoice date, is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0%308

31 - 60 days 31260H
61 - 90 days 612908
Over 90 days 908 KA k

A (&)

28. BENEZRAKREMER

(b) Hib R FrELENEN

B 2 IR

REZHHZENE K
RZEREBEDTEIAT

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TR
- 290

— 306

18 =

18 596

The credit period on purchase of goods ranges
from 30 to 60 days (2023: 30 to 60 days).

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade
payable arising from other business are
denominated in US$.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29.fHEBE
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
BEAEMR BEEEAREAE
2024 2023 2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TRET TER TRET

Within one year —FR 1,060 767 957 752
In the second to E-_EREREF

fifth years, inclusive (BREEMF) 1,691 - 1,620 -

2,751 767 2,577 752

Less: Future finance charges B RANBER (174) (15) [ NIAREBR NATER

Present value of lease obligations ~ HEETRE 2,577 752 2,577 752

Less: Amount due for settlement 5 : 1218 B W 2

within 12 months (shown HEENEE
under current liabilities) (RRBEaE
BTE5) (957) (752)
Amount due for settlement 1218 A 18 3 88
after 12 months EEMEE 1,620 -
All lease liabilities are denominated in HK$. FTEHEEEHYUNBILETE-
The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease HAREEAENEEE XA
liabilities is 5% (2023: 5%). RAESY% (ZTE_=F:5%)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z—

30. BANK LOAN

—ME+ZA=t—-RILLEFE

30. RITE X

2024 2023
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Secured bank loan EEBRRITER 577 1,401
Scheduled payment terms of RITERZETEIERK
bank loan contain a repayment on A B ZBJE
demand clause (shown under EREFRZIEK
current liabilities): (FIARBEE ) '
Within one year —F A 577 824
More than one year, FRiE—FETHBIBMRE
but within two years - 577
More than two years, BEMFEETNBBRS
but within five years — =
577 1,401

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in HK$.

The average interest rate at 31 December 2024 was
6.07% (2023: 6.07%).

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023 the Group’s bank
loan was guaranteed by (i) Mr. Ma Pun Fai, a director
of a subsidiary of the Company and (i) the HKMC
Insurance Limited of HK$3,420,000.

The Group's bank borrowings contain clauses which
give the banks the right at their sole discretion
to demand immediate repayment at any time
irrespective of whether the Group has complied with
the covenants and met the scheduled repayment
obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

30. BANK LOAN (continued) 30. RITE K (#)

The banking facilities of Group are subject to the AEEMRITHEEETHE
fulfilment of covenants related to meeting the THEEEREFEBBNEE It
scheduled repayment obligations, as is common in REHESHEENEETEES
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If BER-MAEEERZH ©
the Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn- %%me%ﬂﬁﬂ%%ﬁz%ﬁ%ﬁ% NS
down facilities would become payable on demand. ETHERANEETFTHEREN
The Group regularly monitors its compliance with BR-RZEFE_MFR_T_=
these covenants. As at 31 December 2024 and F+ZA=1T—H HARERAE
2023, none of the covenants related to drawn-down HENRBE O RFEER

facilities had been breached.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with AEETHEREREEEST
loan covenants. Its repayments up to date are in ,ﬁfé@uﬁ HBZBRMERTD
accordance with the scheduled repayments of the EEHERNERKEHERET
term loans. The Group does not consider that the AEERRBRREASEEEEF
banks will probably exercise their discretions to BRERTE BRI KRATRETT
demand repayments so long as the Group continues FHERERNDWEE - BEAR
to meet these requirements. Further details of the SERECRARERENE—
Group's management of liquidity risk are set out in FHBENGE B RERM T
note 6(d) to the consolidated financial statements. 6(d) °
31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS B1LELERBREE
The following are the deferred tax assets recognised PATR 7% 7N S B B AR BV IR FE AR IR
by the Group. BE-
Provision
of ECL
BHEE
EERE
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2023, R_E_=F—H—H"
31 December 2023 and TEC=F+ZA=t—8Hk
1 January 2024 —E-MNFE—-H—H 23
Charge to profit or loss for the year FRRB=MNG (#iF12)
(note 12) (23)
At 31 December 2024 R-B-_MF+-A=+—8H -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (continued) 31.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of the deductible temporary differences
of approximately HK$70,064,000 (2023:
HK$43,211,000) as it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$237,394,000
(2023: HK$233,182,000) that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams.

ELEHRIEEE (F)

MARRAE TR ER G
F LA B) AR A 0B E B = RR
HARANHERZEZELD
70,064,000 T (ZFEZ =4 :
43,211,000/ 7T ) BERIEE B 18
BE-

REEHR  NEBE A 7] 4K
H1& R & A e AR EAHIE
B 18 #9237,394,0008 T (= Z
— =%:233,182,000/& L) ° i
RA®‘RFROTAIELYE I
BERZEEERRELHEE
Eo

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. B &
2024 2023
Number of Number of
ordinary shares Amount ordinary shares Amount
EERHA £ LiEREA k]
'000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR TER T FHET
At 1 January and 31 December, ®R—A—BR+-A=f+—-H"
ordinary share of HK$0.006 0.0068 72 LBk 100,000,000 600,000 100,000,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 January and 31 December, R—A—BE+-A=1+—-H"
ordinary share of HK$0.006 0.006/8 T2 EiB iR 1,538,537 9,231 1,538,537 9,231

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern and to maximise the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently
by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. The Group
will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts,
redemption of existing debts or selling assets to
reduce debts.

The externally imposed capital requirements for
the Group are: (i) in order to maintain its listing
on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public
float of at least 25% of the shares; (ii) to meet
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing
borrowings; and (iii) minimum capital and liquid
capital requirements by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, the Group complied with the above liquid
capital requirements.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars
monthly on substantial share interests showing the
non-public float and it demonstrates continuing
compliance with the 25% limit throughout the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would
permit the bank to immediately call borrowings.
There have been no breaches in the financial
covenants of any interest-bearing borrowing for the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

32. R (&)

AEBRERBZEREAKAN
Ko & 580l B AN 1 A8 A L B 2R B
BARB AEEBBEKMNRK
B BITH D R A0 8 = PA K
HiHER BLORAGEHKH
EEEARDEHBNTAEF
BMERBEALERE-

SNERE A KB EAREK
() BERRB TR £ i
- HRABRENRRFRES D
D RIRD #I25% ¢ (i) W B 5T &
f& & BE P &Y B 75 2255 0 K (iii) &
AREFLPESFHEREZERS
RENREERARRBESR

BE_ZT_NEER_ZT_=F
+ZA=+—HBIEFE KEH
BEETFMREBESE K-

AEBSFRERNBFERE
BEHEIIEIRFEREERZ
FTEROEZRE BEBRTAN
EEREBE_T_WNFER_-FT
— =+ -A=+—B8ItEE
RN—BEFE25% 2 LBRBE -

fie 38 [ B 15 3256 - $R1T7 4% AT AL RD
KEEE REBEE-T-_MFR
—F-fF+tZA=+—HL
FE AEEWEEREMMGER
BEZ MR-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 3BURMBAER IR

Equity-settled share option scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders at the special general meeting held on
23 December 2021, the Company adopted the new
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose
of rewarding participants who have contributed to
the Group and to provide incentives to work towards
the success of the Company.

Under the Scheme, the Company's board of
directors may, at its discretion, grant options to
eligible persons (including directors, employees and
consultants) to subscribe for the Company’s shares.

The exercise price of the share options under
the Scheme is determined by the directors of the
Company, and must be at least the higher of: (a) the
average of the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the relevant date of offer of the share
options; (b) the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the relevant date of offer of the share
options, which must be a business day; and (c) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

162 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED ##hiAER AR

IR ERE 2 BRER S
BREARABRER-_T-—%F
T A +=BETHRRE
BIXE LBBZRER AR
AR AN R RE R A 8 ([543
g AEBHAKEFELE
Ble2lE WHBRE/SARA
A2 E A -

REZTE ARREFEAR
BRERMEERAL(BRE
F RBREKEMRRTEREN
REBARRBD

ZETEl B ETEERAR
REFET YAELRUTER
BE QEEEHABEREZY
B AEEXERNBIME
BHREXRBLZARF RN F
BRTHE: ) EEBRERD
EHMRBIMERRERSH
ZARRABRMDKHE - Z B BA
REFB  ROARQAKRND Z
{8 °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all Options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% in
nominal amount of the aggregate of Shares in issue
on the date of adoption (“Scheme Mandate Limit").

Options previously granted under the Old Scheme
or any other share option schemes of the Company
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with the terms or exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate Limit as renewed.

At any time, the maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options which
then has been granted and have yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in the absence of
Shareholders’ approval, in aggregate exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time.

An offer of the grant of an option may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of grant together with
a remittance of HK$1 by way of consideration for the
grant thereof. An option may be exercise during such
period as the Board may in its absolute discretion
determine, save that such period shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant.

33. MR R ER 2 I (&)

IR A E 2 B IR T 8
(&)

RIBZAAE RARNRBEME A
BB LM A BK
B RITERABETHRS KD
BEARITREBEMABAHCE
BT EEEMN10% ([5 S
RERE]) -

ERMRBEEXNARFEM
HAth B8 BB 5T 81 R b 2 BB A
(BREBIFET SR W RITE
B ERBACTEZER
BN EEEHTERERER
BATHEEAR-

A 0] B FR) 72 R AR AR SR L B
BT RIFEZET 8 kAR RME
] E A P AR ST &I R BB R
TIEZ T B AR RITER A
FTRHROIRODZESHBEAEHXT
BHEBITEEEITRN30% -

BHBEREZEHAREKER
HiEET28H MM - I X 1178
TEARH BN ZHE - BRE
ARESEREBYHNEEE
EZHRATTEE - HA R B S
R AR A SEB 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

The following table discloses the details of the
Company's share options and the movements during
the year ended 31 December 2023:

3.URMAER 2R (&)
LIRS E 2 B IR EST S
(&)
TREBEAQRABRENFS
M&F@i:Q:_¢+ H

Outstanding at Outstanding at
1.1.2023 Cancelled/lapsed 31.12.203
Exercise price RZBzZf Grant Exercise  during the year RZBZZF
Category Date of grant per share Exercise period Notes —F-R  during the year  during the year RERZE/ T-A=1-R
LY REBH ERORE TRAR ik HATE RERRH RERTE % HAGE
Director
iz
CHOW Hei Yin Terry 8 April 2021 0.1066 8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023 @ 6,304,000 = = (6,304,000) -
BEE “2--¥MANA “R--#MANRE
CECZEMALH
HUANG Zhi 8 April 2021 0.1066 8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023 @ 6,304,000 = = (6,304,000) -
B ZE--£WANA ZE--£WANRE
CECZEMALH
Employee 8 April 2021 0.1066 8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023 @) 50,432,000 - - (50,432,000 -
fE8 “R--EmANE “3--§MANRE
Z3-ZFRALA
63,040,000 - - (63,040,000) -
Exercisable at the end of the year RERATR -
Weighted average exercise price METHTREE HK$0.106675 T NATER
notes: Btat

(a) 63,040,000 options granted on 8 April 2021 are
immediately vested at the date of grant. The closing
price of the shares of the Company immediately
before the grant date of the share options on 8 April
2021 was HK$0.1066 per share.

There was no market vesting condition or non-
market performance condition associated with the
options granted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 3. KR A Z B AR R R R R
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE B2 E
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) AR \] 2z B # AR R 3=
Company
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZIRE 169 169
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and Ee BNRER
other receivables H b fE U FRIE 5,578 7,622
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B N A FRIE 85,252 90,457
Bank balances IRITHE 5 769 1,124
91,599 99,203
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued expenses and EETFRE R
other payables H A & 7 FRIR 5,068 3,170
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE - B B A B FR I8 27,664 27,694
32,732 30,864
Net current assets REBEEFH 58,867 68,339
Net assets EEFE 59,036 68,508
Capital and reserves IR 2 R 8
Share capital N 9,231 9,231
Reserves {1 49,805 59,277
Total equity mRES 59,036 68,508
The financial statements were approved and PBEHRERER_ZE_AF
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on AT REHEEEEH
26 March 2025 and were signed on its behalf by: EREETE W HTHE
EREEE:
ZHU Yuqi Tong Hei Ming Andrew
RPH =
Director Director
EH EZE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z—

—ME+ZA=t—-RILLEFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

(b) Reserve movement in the Company

At 1 January 2023

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year

Share options lapsed

At 31 December 2023 and
1 January 2024

Loss and total comprehensive income
for the year

At 31 December 2024

RZE-=F-f—-H
TEERFIRZANGLER

BRERM

HoE
‘\—7

&1;:
B

ZETZR=t-
£-A-H
AEEFRRZANEAE

34. AR B Z BB AR R KA

w2 (&)

(b) RRF 2 EEEE

RZF-ME+-A=T-H

Share
Share Contributed options
Premium surplus reserve
RBERE BARE BRERE  Accumulated
(note 35(b)(i))  (note 35(b)(ii)  (note 35(b)(v)) losses Total
(WE350)0))  (HE350)ii)  (KE350)v) 2itEE ag
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Titn TiEn ThEL FhL Tin
129,910 522,104 2,819 (596,316) 58,517
- - - 760 760
- - (2,819) 2,819 -
129,910 522,104 - (592,737) 59,277
- - - (9.472) (9,472)
129,910 522,104 - (602,209) 49,805
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

35. RESERVES 35. f#1&
(a) Group (a) ~&HE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and rEERFRHESEREE
movements therein are presented in the RizaBEm kEME2E K
consolidated statement of profit or loss and mERREEERETHRE
other comprehensive income and consolidated 5l o

statement of changes in equity.

(b) RBEZHERBEMN
() K17

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

(1)

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in
excess of their par value per share and
after deduction of capitalisation issue and
issuance costs of shares. Pursuant to the
Companies Law of the Bermuda, funds in
the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Other capital reserve

Other capital reserve represents the
difference between the nominal value of
the share capital and the share premium
of the subsidiaries at the date on which
they were acquired by the Group and the
nominal value of the share capital issued as
consideration for the acquisition.

g BhERZRER
FhREE BRETR
D BEENBRENCET
KB BITRAMESE
ZaBE-REBRER
BlE AR AR i (B
EHESA DR T AR
AIRR - EEEEZED
NS I NVNCTE SR =
BE—REBBES I
HIZ (B e

(i) BEMELXFE

HMEARFERHIERA
SEWENBARZH
(RN=NCI A &N g h)
mEEEEERKREZ
REMBFITHRAEE
ZE®B-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

35. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share
capital issued by the Group and the net
asset value of subsidiaries acquired through
an exchange of shares pursuant to the
reorganisation.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 4(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share options reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to
directors, employees and consultants of the
Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for equity-settled
share-based payments in note 4(o) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=E—T_NE+_-A=1+—HLEE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36. AAREEMBAT ZF
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15
Details of principal subsidiaries of the Company at KATEEH B A T RIS H
the end of the reporting period are set out below. RZFHBEYWMT o
Place of Proportion ownership
incorporation  Class of interest held
and operations  shares held Issued by the Company
Name of subsidiary A fi ki share capital ~ ALEHEZEEE  Principal activities
il Pk Lg% g5l ERfTRE G Eidl] IEXH
2024 2023
Directly held B 75 -
China Guoxin SunCorp Financial  British Virgin Ordinary Us$100 70% 70% Investment holding
Holdings Limited Island (“BVI")
THACHESRARERAT EBRLHS([R TRR 100%7 RELERK
BEZEER])
WELL SMOQTH LIMITED BvI Ordinary US$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
ABRAER  EBR 10,000%70 RERR

Indirectly held BZ# 5 -

Worldwide Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Processing and trading of

(Hong Kong) Limited used computer-related
components

RRETHR (BE)ARAA B Lk 1T _FERARANRER
g5

CASHCOW FINANCE (HK) LIMITED Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 100% 100% Money lending business

PRIEE (BR)ERAR i Bk 10,000,000 ¢ HEZHE

Suncorp Securities Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$76,000,000 100% 100% Provision of securities

brokerage, placing and
underwriting services

HEEAARAT Bk Lk 76,000,000 ¢ REESHLE RER
BHERH
BILLION MAX INTERNATIONAL ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100% 100% Sales of clothes and beauty
LIMITED products
FRARERAR B Lk 1007 HEREREAEm
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36.

37.

ﬁﬁﬁ%Wﬁ

—ME+ZA=t—-RILLEFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the years end 31 December
2024 and 2023, or at any time during the years end
31 December 2024 and 2023.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flow were, or future
cashflows will be classified in the Group's
consolidated statement of cash flows from
financing activities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—ZT_NE+_A=+—HILFE

37.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (continued)

At 1 January 2024

Interest charged

Interest paid

Financing cash flows

Additions to lease
liabilities (note 37(e)(ii))

At 31 December 2024
At 1 January 2023

Interest charged
Interest paid
Financing cash flows
Termination of lease

At 31 December 2023

37.FEREREBERWE (&)

(a) MEFBELEZBESH

BR (&)

Lease
Bank loan liabilities Total
RITER HEEE Mt

(note 30) (note 29)

(MEE30)  (BI7E29)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FETT FETT
RZZE-WMFE—AF—H 1,401 752 2,153
BUERF B 59 64 123
B E (59) (64) (123)
BERERE (824) (1,051) (1,875)

RNEMEARE

(Bt:E37(e)i)) = 2,876 2,876
WZEZWF+—A=+—H 577 2,577 3,154
WN_E-_=%—H—H 2,177 2,062 4,239
B YEF B 107 72 179
ERFE (107) (72) (179)
HERERE (776) (1,252) (2,028)
mIFHAE - (58) (58)
RZE-_=F+=-A=+—H 1,401 752 2,153
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

37.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated statement
of cash flows for lease comprise the following:

Within operating cash flows

BRELHE N
Within financing cash flows S

BrmER

HHIHJ Hmlm

These amounts relate to the following:

ENEEES

Lease rental paid
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37.EBRERERMET (&)

(b) HEZHESR LR

AARBHEERERAEA

Ffﬁﬂi"fﬂ’]i%ﬁ’E%MT%
15 -

2024 2023

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

64 218

1,051 1,252

1,115 1,470
ZESHEENTEBER:

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FAT

1,115 1,470




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ—

37.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

()

(d)

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 11 October 2023, the Group disposed its
subsidiaries, namely Suncorp Group Limited and
Suncorp Global Limited.

ﬁé‘ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%@ﬂﬁﬁi

—ME+ZA=+—-HILLEFE

37.EBRERERMET (&)

(c) HE—RKBRRA

R-ZTE-_=F+A+—8"
AEELHEMRENE R A
Bl Suncorp Group Limited }&

FERIRA R A A

Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as REEBRBR s BEFEN
follows: T:

HK$'000

FAET

Bank balances RITA 68
Trade payables and other payables Fﬁf’f%ﬁ% R K E At FE < 508 (29,321)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 9) HEN B ARz W (H7:#9) (29,253)
Total consideration BRE —
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEAZR &ML FHE
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HERES MBS EEEE (68)

* consideration less than HK$1,000.

Deregistration of a subsidiary

On 10 May 2024, a wholly-owned subsidiary,
Beijing Fengyi Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Fengyi”), was deregistered.

* {E71,000/8 TTHIRE

(d) s —ENE AT

R_TE_MWFERATH:

> EM B A ABeijing
Fengyi Technology Co.,Ltd.
(IBeijing Fengyil) 2 %%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE

37.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 37.58RERERME (&)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(d) Deregistration of a subsidiary (continued)

(d) EHE—FHHBQR (&)
REHARZEEFEN

Net assets at the date of deregistration were as

follows: T
HK$'000
THEx
Deposits g 62
Other payable H fth & 15 TR I8 (68)
Net liabilities of Beijing Fengyi Beijing Fengyi K] & & F & (6)
Release of foreign currency translation reserve  fEBR MBS IR & (4B 1M
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary IHE—FENBRRES 2 BB 135

(e) FEFBEXRSH

REZ_-_ZFT - MNQ
+ - A=+—HB1HF
E EBEEZREFE

(e) Major non-cash transaction

_FR

(i) During the year ended 31 December (i)
2024, loan and interest receivables of
approximately HK$11,186,000 (2023:

HK$8,506,000) is settled by listed securities
of approximately HK$11,186,000 (2023:
HK$8,506,000) which represent the market
price of the settlement date.

During the year ended 31 December
2024, addition to right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$2,876,000 (2023: Nil) was
financed by lease liabilities of HK$2,876,000
(2023: HK$Nil).
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(i)

#4711,186,000 7T ( =
T~ =4%:8,506,000
BIL) VA LT RELD
11,186,000 L (= &
— =% :8,506,000/%
7T) (MMEEBRBHzM
B)#1T -

BHE_ZT_-_MOF+ =
A=+—BLt&FE-
ARETRAEEED
2,876,000 T (=&
—=F:\)BHMEE
B 182,876,000/ 7T (—
T=F:EFT)IR



38.

39.

40.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ—

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has no significant contingent liabilities at
the end of the reporting period.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with its related parties during the year:

Compensation of key management
personnel

Key management personnel are the directors of the
Company. The remuneration of key management
personnel during the year was as follows:

SRR

Short-term benefits

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
26 March 2025.

38.

39.

40.

ﬁé‘ﬁﬁ%iﬁ%l}ﬁﬁi
SMET=ASt-BILERE
HARBE

REmERR NEET/ELRNK
BEALIRS

Bréra M mk Mo AT
BLHEBEANTRS RESBIN K
SEFAEBEATHNRS N
T~

EEESR 25

%%E%hz}i T%% g
BR

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHE T FHET

856 1,149
HEFREMBERER

EEeER_SE_HAF=A

“tHtARBHERRERMES
BIF K -
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Financial Summary

M B E

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE-—T_NE+_A=+—HILLFE
RESULTS

Revenue W g

(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (BR) /&7

Attributable to: TH AT R
Owners of the Company N/NIE 2N

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets BEE
Total liabilities BafE
Net assets FEE

Equity attributable to owners A7 B # B AL
of the Company fEa

£

For the year ended 31 December

BZ+-HA=1t-HLEE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET TET THER
173,692 199,967 128,035 66,288 38,876
(70,107) (58,840) (57,354) 40,065 (45,510)
(70,107) (58,753) (56,992) 40,070 (45,385)
EERAEE
As at 31 December
Rt+t=-B=+-H

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET TAET TET TAER
299,153 328,982 282,174 264,025 231,468
(44,121) (71,974) (78,965) (20,751) (33,563)
255,032 257,008 203,209 243,274 197,905
255,032 257,008 203,209 243,274 197,905
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) provides an important link
between the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within the scope of the audit
of the Company. The Audit Committee was established in March 2000 with written terms of
reference, which is available on the websites of both the Company and the Stock Exchange, and
currently comprises three members, namely Mr. Ma Kin Ling (chairman), Mr. Man Yuan and Ms.
Huang Zhi, all being independent non-executive Directors.

The results announcement of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 has been
reviewed by Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure
have been made.

PUBLICATION OF ANNUAL RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT AND ANNUAL REPORT

This announcement is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and
the Company at www.suncorptech.com.hk. The annual report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2024 will be despatched to the Shareholders and published on the aforesaid websites
in due course.
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year ended 31 December 2024.

By Order of the Board
SunCorp Technologies Limited
Zhu Yugqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2025

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises two executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Zhu Yuqi and Mr. Tong Hei Ming Andrew; and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Man Yuan, Mr. Ma Kin Ling and Ms. Huang Zhi.



